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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Ca. No. 445921 - )
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasurs in submitting their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 Decamber 2018.
Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

Tha principal activities of the subsidiarise are set uﬁt in Note 18 fo the financial statements.
There has been no significant change in the naturs of these principal activitios during the

financial yaar ended 31 December 2018.

Results Group Company
RM RM

Attributable to the cwner of the Company:

L.oss for the financial year 4 287 148 1,779,628
Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehansive loss for the financial year 4 287 148 1,779,622

Reserves and provisions

Thera were no material transfers to ar from reserves and provisions during the financial year
except as disclosed in the financial statements.

Dividends

No dividend has been paid, declared or proposed since the end of the previous financial
year. The Directors do not recommend any dividends for the current financial year ended
31 December 2018.

Directars

The Directors who have held office during the financial year and up to the date of this report
are:

Dato’ Seri Mohd Shariff Bin Omar
Lin, Kai-Min

Lin, Kai-Hsuan

Hiew Sang

Sysd Ibrahim Bin Syed Abd. Rahman




CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No., 445831 - )
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

PIRECTORS' REPORT

Directors (continued)

Pursuant to Sectton 253 of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia, the Diractars of subsidiary
companies during the financial year and up to dats of this report are as follows:

Lin, Kai-hMin

Lin, Tsai-Rong

Lin, Kai-Hguan

Chow Chung Kong

Pang Pah Loh @ Pang Pak Lok

Directors’ interests in shares

The holdings and deemed holdings in the ordinary shares of the Company and its related
corporations {other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) of thoss who were directors at the end
of the financial year, as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholding kept under
Section 59 cf the Companies Act, 2018 ("CA 2016™) are as follows:

Mumber of ordinary shares

At At
Dlrect intarest: 1.1.2018 Bought Sold 31.12.2018
Lin, Kai-Min 13,846,250 489,000 - 14,335,250
Lin, Kai-Hsuan 4,330,500 - - 4,330,500
Hiew Seng 62,500 - - 82,500

By virtue of the directors’ interast in the ordinary shares of the Company, they are also

deemad to have interest in ordinary shares of the subsidiary companies to the extent the
Company has an interest,

None of the other directors holding office at the end of the financial year had any interest in
the ordinary shares of the Company and its related corporations.

Directors’ bensfits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor
bacome entitied to receive any benefit {other than a benefit included in the zggregate
amount of emoluments recaived or due and racsivable by directors as disclosed in the
financial statements or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of tha Company) by reason
of a contract made by the Company or a relatad corporation with the director or with a firm
of which the director is 2 member, or with a company in which the directar has a substantizl
financial interest, except as digclosed in Note 29 to the Financial Statemants.

Thera were no arrangements during and at the end of ths financial year, which had the
object of enabling the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.




CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

HRECTORS' REPORT

Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration paid to or receivable by the directors of the Group and Company during
the financial year is amounted to Riv1 224,000 ang RM168,000 respectivaly,

Indemnlty and insurance for Dirsctors and officers

The Company maintains a corporate liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the
Greup throughout the financia year, which provides appropriate insurance cover far the
Directors and officers of the Group. The amount of Insurance premium paid by the Company
for the financial year ended 39 December 2018 amounted to RM9,505.

tssues of shares and debentures

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during tha financial year.

Options granted over unissued shares
No apticns were granted to any person to taka up unissued shares of the Company during
the financial yaar.

Treasury shares

As at 31 December 2018, the Company held as treasury shares a total of 1,664,600 of its
75,000,000 issued ordinary shares. Such treasury shares are held at & carrying amount of
RMB93,951 and further relevant details are disclosed in Note 24 te the financial statements.

Other statutory information

Before tha financial statements of the Group and of the Company wers made aut, the
Directors took reasonable steps to ascentain that:

{i) all known bad debts had been written off and adequate allowance had been mads
for doubtful debts: and

{ii} all current assets have been stated at the lower of cost and net realisabls value.




CYMAOQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - L))
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Qther statutory information {(continued)
At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
(i which would render the amount written off for bad debts, or the amount of the

allowance for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company inadequate to any substantial extant: or

ii) which would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading: or

(iii) which have arisen which render adherencs to the existing method of valuation of
assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate;
or

{iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financia! statements, which would

rendar any amount stated in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company misleading.

As at the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge cn the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since
the end of the financial year which secures the liabifities of any other parson; or

fif) any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Company that has arisen
since the end of the financlal year.

No contingent liabllity or other liability of the Group and of the Company has becoms
enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable within the pericd of twelye (12} months after
the end of the financial year which, in the cpinion of the Directors, will or may substantially

affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to mest their obligations as and when
thay fall dus.

tn the opinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of tha Company
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 have not been substantially affected by any
itetn, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has any such item,

transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and the
date of this rapor].

Signlficant event during the financial year

Details of significant event during the financial year are dizclosed in Note 34 to the financial
statements.

Event after the reporting period

Details of event after the reporting period are disclosed in Note 35 to the financial
stataments.



CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - L))
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Autlitors

The auditors, Messrs PKF, have indicated their willingnass to continue in office.
During the financial year, the total amount of fees paid to or receivable by the auditors as

remuneration for their services as auditors of the Group and tha Company are amounted to
RM132,000 and RM47,000 respectively.

Signed an behaif of the Board
in accordance with a resolution of the Dirsctors,

A
 »

S —

Director
IBR YED ABD. RAHMAMN
Dlrector

Sandakan

Dated 13 April 2019




CYMAD HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - L
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2016

In the opinion of the Directers, the accompanying financial statements sat out on pages 13
to 93 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financtal Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act,
2018in Malaysia s0 as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and
of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and of their financial performance and cash flows
for the financial year endsd on that date.

Signed on behalf of the Board
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

E
LIM, KAI-RIN SYED |
Director Oirgctdr

YED ABD RAHMAN

Sandakan

Dated 13 April 2019

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TOQ SECTION 251{1)(B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2016

I, LIN, KAI-MIN, being the Diractor primarily responsible for the financial management of
CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my
knowiedge and belief, the accompanying financial statements et out on page 13to 99
arg in my opinion ¢orrect, and | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the
same to be true and by viftue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
the abovenamed LIN, KAI-MIN

)
)
at Sandakan in the state of Sabah )
on 17 April 2019 ) W :

............ . LIN, KA-MIN

Befare ma,

60 .
SALINGAH BIRTE UL AIKAN
Tonpob l2dEEn
- 31.12.2000 S W
COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS
TATRYS

14t 6, Blok 24, Tingkat [Fawih,
- :-Imdm nddah. Bati 4, Jalarn 1Atk
Son0n Sandakan, 6
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Accountants &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

TQ THE MEMBERS OF CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445831 - 1))

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Audit of the FInancial Statements

Oplnlon

We have audited the financial statements of CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD, which comprise
the statements of financlal position as at 31 December 2018 of the Group ang of the
Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, staterments
of changes in equity and statements of ¢ash flows of the Group and of the Company for the
financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, Including a summary of
significant accounting policies, as set aut on pages 13 to 80.

In our opinion, the aceompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and of their finansial
parformance and their cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Oplinlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards cn Auditing. Our respensibilities under those standards are furiher
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audi of the Financial Statemants section
of our report. We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion.

Indspandence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

Wa are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountanta {'By-
Laws™) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants ('IESBA Code"), and we have fuffilled our other ethical
responsibilities In accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audlt Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the
current year. These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion therson,
and we da not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Te! +G086-260 723 = Fax +8088-267 721 » Email: menkitdpkimalaysla.com + Web: www.phfmalaysla.com
Lol 23-1 & 25-1 + 15t Floor = Lintas Plaza = Lorgng Lintas Flaza » B3300 Kota Kinabalu » Sabah + Malaysia

¥
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

PKF

Accountants &
buginess aclvigers

TO THE MEMBERS OF CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Co. No. 445931 - L)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

(continued)

Koy Audit Matters (continuad)

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the key audlt
matter

Going concern

As highlighted in the statements of profit
or loss and other comprehansive income,
tha Group reporied a total comprahensive
loss fer the curent and previous financial
year amounting to BM4,287 148 and
RM7 465 928 respectively.

The Directors have assessed whether any
material uncertainties exist which cast
significant doubt as to the Group’s ability
to meets its liabllities and whether the
mitigating acltions identified by
mahagemsent are achievable. As these
assessments involve significant
judgement, this is therefore consldered a
matter of most significance.

We obtained and raviewad the going concern
assesement prepared by management
including a five-year cash flow forecast and the
assumptions underlying the future cash flows.

We additionally reviewed the Group's log
supply contracts to ascertain the sufficiency of
logs to support the level of oparations
forecasted for the next financial year. We
further chacked the Group's compliance with
the terms of its borrowings and did not nofs
any non-compliance.




PKF

Accountants & -
busingss advigers

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

{Co. No. 445831 - )
{Incorperatad in Malaysia)

{continued}

Key Audit Matters (continuad)

Araa of focus

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Impalrment of property, plant and
equipmant

As highlighted in the preceding section,
the Group had incurred significant losses
for the current and pravious financial year,
which is an indicator that the Group's
property, plant and squipment may be
impaired.

We obtained manzgement's review on the
impairment of property, plant and eguipmant
performed for three (3) of the subsidiary
companies that have significant value of
property, plant and equipment, i.e. Cymao
Piywood Sdn. Bhd., Inovwood Sdn. Bhd. and
Poly-Ply Industries Sdn. Bhd.

As highlighted in Note 3(b)jil Significant
accounting fudgments and estimates, the
recovarable amount g tha higher of the fair
value less costs to sell and the asset's value
in ugs. The fair values of the assets as
ascribed by independent professicnal valuers
during the financial year are significantly
higher than their carrying amounts, and
therafore no impairment is required. Due to
the extent of the surplus beiwsen fair values
and camying values, the valuation is not
deemad sensitive to any change in the
vatlables.

We additlonally performed the following:

o Assessed the competence, capabititiss,
objectivity and qualifications of the
Director's independent valuers;

o Discussed the scope of their work with
management and considered tha
independence and sexpertise of the
independent professional valuer engaged
by the management; and

o Reviewed and assessed the significant
assumplions and estimates used by the
vaiuers in determining their final numbers
and found them to be reasonable, as well
as tested the mathematical accuracy of all
calcutations included within the final
valuation reports.




PKF

Accauntants &
business advisars

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CYMADO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No, 445831 - 1)

{Incorparated in Malaysia)

feontinued)
Informatlon Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Raport Thereon

The Diractors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprlses the
information included In the annual repert, but deas not include the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company and our audlitors’ report thergon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company do not cover the
other infermation and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion tharaon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
our responsikility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether tha
other information is matarially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of
the Cc:-mgany or our knowledga obtainad in tha audit or otherwise appsars to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have periormed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Reaponsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and
of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, international Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2018 In Malaysla. The Dirgctors are also responsible for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
gstatements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material mizstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue as going
concarns, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unlass the Directors elther intand to liquidate the Group or the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but te do so.

Auditors’ Responslbllitles for the Audit of the Financlal Statemants

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whather the financial statements
of the Group and of the Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whather
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonabie
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards
on Auditing will always detact a material misstatament whan it exists. Misstatemants can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregats, they
could reasonably be expected to infiuence the economic decisions of users taken on tha
basis of these financial statements.

0
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TQ THE MEMBERS OF CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445231 -U)

{Incerporated in Malaysia)

{continued}

Auditors’ Responsibllities for the Audlt of the Financial Statements {confinued)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing; we exercise professional judgement and maintain
profasgional scepticism throughout the audit. Wa also;

() Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, destgn and perform
audit procedures rasponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materiaf
migstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of intarnal control.

(i) ~ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstancas, but not for the purposs of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s internal
control.

(i) Evaluata the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

(v) Concluds on the appropriatenass of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists refated tc events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
arthe Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financlal statements of the Group and of the Company or, i
such disclosures are inadequats, to modify our apinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

{v) Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of
the Group and of the Gompany, Including the disclosures, and whethar the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

{vi) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit avidence regarding the financial infermation of the
entities or buginass activities within the Group to express an epinion on the financial
statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain sclely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencias in
internal cantrol that we |dentify during our audit. '

T
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Ancountants &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMEBERS OF CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445831 - U)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

{continuad)
Auditors’ Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {continued)

We also provide the Directors with a statemant that we have complied with relevant ethicat
requirements regarding independsnce, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bsar on our indapendsnce, and where
applicable, related eafeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine thoss matters that were
of most significancs in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. Wa describe these matters in
our auditors’ report unless iaw or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter shoulid not be
communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of dolng 80 would
reascnably be expected to outweigh the public intarest benefits of such communication.

Other Mattar

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with
Section 266 of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility to any other parson for the contents of this report.

20

PKF CHAU MAN KIT

AF 0%11 02525/03/2020 J
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Kota Kinabalu

Dated 17 April 2019
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INGOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 201 8

Company
2018 207 2013 2017
HNote RM RM RM RM

Revenus 5 88,022 888 93,089,145 -

Cost of sales (81.8¥9,318) {89 ,433,568) -
Grosa profit 8,154,570 4 BEESTT - -
Interaet incoma B 30,448 41,117 - -
Othet operafing income 7 1,182,755 532,515 -
OQther operating

&xpenses 8 392.040) (814 882) -
Impalrmeant on financial
aegels g 136,495 80,961 {1307 824 -

Selllng expenses {4,B00,873) (5,140.684) -
Administrative expsnses (6,477.205) {8,387 183} (471,805 (631,260
Share of loss of |oint

ventura {11.1456) {(388,961) -
Loss from operations 12 (3,867, 704) {7,220 560) {1,779,626) {531,200}
Finance costs 13 {424,262 (330 883) - -
Losa before taxation {4.391,968) (7.561.523) (1,779,629 (531.290)
Income tax expenss 14 104 818 82697 - -
Losas for the financial

year {4 287,148} {7.458,928) (1,779,829) (537,200)
QDiher comprehensive

income - - -
Total comprehanalve

logs for the finangiat

year {4,287 148) (7.458,926) {1,778.828) {531,280)

- ——— B —— |

Loas per share

attributable to

ov/nera of the

Company {sen

per share)
Basic 15 {5.85) (10.18)

B ———=—_ ] e

The accompanying accountin

financial ststements,

g policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the

13




CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

{Co. No. 445931 - U)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

ASBETS

Nen-currant assels

Property, plant and
eccliuipmant

Land u=a rights

Inyestments in
subaldiary companiss

Investmenia accounted
for using the equity
methad

Current anagts

Inventarias

Trade and non-trade
receivables

Tax recoverable

Cash and bank
halances

Aseels clazsifiad as
held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

Eqully attributable to
awners of the
Company

Share capital
Traasury sharas
Accurillated losesa

Tota! equlty

Non-curvent liabilitias

Loans and horrowings
Deferrad tax liabitilizg

Currant liabitities

Loans and borrowings
Trade and non-trade
payables

Total Nakilitles

TOTAL EQUITY AND
HABILITIES

Note

17
18

19

20
21

22

23

24
25

28
27

28
28

Group
A3 restated
2014 017 2018 o7
EM RM RN R

30,351 485 35,280,249 1 1

786 358 530,508 - -
79,065,837 79,086,037

51,172 - -
31,137,843 36,151,000 70,085,938 78,086,538

29477 700 21,858,375 - -
15,410,931 15434 706 152,583 1,808,207

868,050 790,338 - -
3,308,457 LA4SRATT 24,858 0,305
49 164,147 43,341 504 177,451 1,838,512

2,760,830 - - -
83,062 620 78,452,803 759,244,388 8{,206,450
B2 374, 3587 92,374,387 B2,374, 387 B2 374 287

(6893,851) [593,951§ {583,651 {693,951§

(33,414.046) (28,126 808 (24,405 604 (22 825 075
58,266,300 82,653,538 87 274 832 68,054,461

1,818,143 2,010 858 -

1,524,463 1,637,581 -

3,442 G4 3 6857630 -

9,528,149 6,220,821 - -
11,825,470 7,080,705 11,968 657 11,851,880
21,353,619 13,281 526 11,968 657 11,851,989
24,786 230 18,839,086 11,888 657 11,851,989
B3.062 620 78,482,607 79 244 388 80,906,450

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form en integral part of the

financial statemeants.

14
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CYMAO HOLDINGS EERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - L)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Group Caompany
2018 2017 2018 2017
Cast flowa from ocperating Note RM RM RM RM
activitlan
toss hafore taxation {4,391 9686) {7.551.523) {1,778 820} (531,200)
Adjuglments for;
Altrwanca for slow moving inventories 111,510 - -
Amortisation of land use rights 53,230 53,230 -
Bad debts wiritten off 384,565 184,887 -
Depraciation of property, plant and
enulpment 3,818,111 3,904,395 10,481
Gain on disposal of praparty, plant
and equipment {20,000) {151,408) - -
impairment an financial assets {136,485) (90 861} 1,307,524 -
Intarest expenzes 424 262 330,863 -
Interest incoma {30,448} 41 117
Inventories written off - 53 842
Liabilitles no longer in existence
wiitten off {8,079) -
L.azs on dispozal of investment 10,830
Froperty, plani and equipment wiittan
aoff g4.622 - -
Share of less of share in Jainl venture 11,145 388,851 -
Unrealised geln on foreign exchange - {103 470} -
Operating profitiioss] hafore
warklng capital changes 120,187 (3,022,122) {471 805) {520,7848)
Change in inyantories (F,230,844) 1,816 987 - -
Change in recelvables {23d,2056) 10,068,715 348,790 3IM.802
Changa in payables 4 773,844 {1,058,700) (40, 241) {38,423)
Cash {usad In)igenerated from
operations (2.271,108) 7006870 {183,258 {168.6820)
income tax paid {420,859) (429,010% - -
fncome tex refunded 242 B55 145,781 -
interest paid (424,282} (330,283 -
Wet cagh {used in)igensrated from
cperating activitias (3,882 384} 5,005,658 (183, 268) {188,620}
Cash Bows from investing
activities
Acquisition of property, plant and
equiprnent (1,305,409) (2542 321) -
Interest received 30,448 41,117
Pracesds from dizposal of propery,
plent and equipment 20,000 187,858 -
Fracesds fram dizposal of inveslment
on [olnt verdure 28,187 - - -
Net cash used in Investing
activitiza {1.225,854) (?2.313,348) - -
{forward)

The accompanying accounting policies and axpfanatory notes form an infegraf part of the

financiafl stetemants.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - L1
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

feonlinued)
Group Company
2018 2017 2B 2017
Note RM RM RM RM
Cash flows from financing
activitlen
Change in amount tus to subsidiary - - 167,800 251,81
Drawdown of bankers' accaplance 23,472 DO 20,877 000 - -
Purchase of treasury zharas - 53,042} - (53,042)
Repeyment of bankers' acceptance |(21.236,000) (20,801.000) - -
Repeyment of hira purchase {143,583) (60,551) -
Repaymeant of term loans (148,652} {143,201} -
Net cash generated fromi{used in)
financing activities 1,945 865 (490, 784) 167 809 188,849
Net {decreasallincraase in cash
and cash equivalentg (2.162,373) 2,201 518 (5447} 20,220
Cash and cash equlvalents at
beginning of financial year BAGE1TY 3,166,861 30,305 10,076
Cash and cazh equivalents at anc
of finanglal year 22  2,205804 6.458 177 24 B58 30,305
{il Reconciliation of lfabilities arlsing from financing actlvities
1.January Cash Nen-cash 31 Cecoamber
208 Aows acqulsition 2018
Group RM RM ) RN
Bankers' acceptance 5875000 2,233 000 - 8,211,000
Term loans 1,788,730 {148,552) - 1,642,178
Hire purchasse 477.04% (143,583 249,000 582 468
8,240,779 1,845 465 249,000 10,435,844
1 January Cash Non-cash 3 December
2017 fows acquizltlan 217
Group RM RM RM RM
Bankers’ acceptance 5,688,000 (224,000) - 5975000
Term loans _ 183193 (143,201) - 1,788,730
Hire purchass - {60,5591) 537 00 477,040
B,030,831 (427.752) 537 600 8,240,770

The accompanying accounting policies and explenatory notes form an integral part of the

financial statamenis,
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - )
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(i) Reconclilation of llabllities arlsing from financing activities {continued)

Company

Amaounts dus to subsidlary
companiss

Company

Amounts due to subsidiary
compenies

{ii) Non-cash transactlons

Acquisition of property, plant and equipmant

Cash Nan-cash I Dacember
Aows acqulaltlon 2018

am RM RM
167,809 - 11,811,307
Gash Non-cash 31 Decembgr
flows acoulaltion 2017

RM RM RM
251,891 - 11,863,428

During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipmant with an
aggregate cost of RM1,554,499 (2017 RM3,079,821} of which RM249,000 (2017
RMS537,600) were acquired by means of hire purchasse. Cash payments of
RM1,305,498 (2017 RM2,542,321) were made to acquired property, plant and

efuipment.

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory riotes form an integral part of the

financial stalements.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445831 - Ui}
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

1.

Ganeral information

The Company, incorporatad in Malaysia, is a public limited lighility company that is
incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and s listed on the Main Market of Burea
Malaysia Securities Berhad. The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 to the
financial statements. There has bean no significant changs in the nature of these
principal activities during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company are located at
MPT 4604, 3rd Floor, Lot 15-18, Block B, Bandaran Baru, Jalan Baru, 81000 Tawau,

Sabah, Malaysia and 8.7 KM, Jalan Batu Sapi, 90000 Sandakan, Sabah, Melaysia
respactively.

These financial statements were authorised for issus by the Directors in accordance
with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 13 April 2019.

Basis of preparation

Tha significant accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are
consistent with those adopted in previous financial vear unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared on the
historical cost convention, other than as disclosed in the notes to the financiat
statements, and in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards
("MFRS"} issued by Malaysian Accounting Standards Board, International Financial

Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"} and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in
Malaysia.

The financial statements are prepared in Ringgit Malaysia (RM) which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statemsnts of each entity are
maasured using that functional currency.

(a) Adoption of new and revised MFRS

The following amendled Standards have been adopted in the cument vear.
Unless otherwise disclosed, thair adoption has had no material impact on the
amounts reported in these financial stataments.

The main effect of the adoption of the above is summarised below:

(i) MFRS 9, Financlal Instruments

n November 2014, MASB issusd the final version of MFRS ¢
Financial Instruments which reflects all phases of the financial
instruments project and replaces MFRS 135 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and all pravious versions of MFRS €.
MFRS 9 is effective for annual periods baginning on or after 1 January
2018, with early application parmittsd. Retrospective application is
required, but comparative information is net compulsory. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement of financial assatz and liabilities, impairment of financial
assets and hedge accounting.
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CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Co. No. 445931 - U)

{Incerporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. Basis of preparatlon {continued)

{a} Adoption of new and revised MFRS (continued)

{i} MFRS 9, Financlal Inatruments {continued)

(i}

(i)

Classification and measurement

MFRS 8 has two measurement categories — amortised cost
and fair value. All equity instruments are measured at fair
value. A dabt instrument is measured at amortised cost only
if the enlity is holding it to collect contractual cash flows and
the cash flows reprasent principal and interast. For financial
liabilities, the standard ratains most of the MFRS 139
requirements. These include amoriised cost accounting for
most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of embedded
derivatives. The maln change is that, in cases where the fair
valug option is taken fer financial liabilities, the fair value
change due to an entity's own credit risk is recorded in othar
comprehensive income rather than the statemsnt of profit or
loss, unless this creates an accounting mismateh.

Impairment

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets
maasured at amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables and cerfain ioan
commitments as well as financial guarantee contracts. At
initial recognition, allowance for impairment is required for
axpected credit losses ("ECL") resulting from default events
that are possibls within the next 12 menths (“12 month ECL™.
In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, allowance
for impairment is required for ECL resulting from all possible
default events over the expected life of the financial
ingtrument. The assessment of whather credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recogniticn is performed for
each repaorting pariod by considering the probability of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial insirurment.
The assessment of credit risk, as well as the estimation of
ECL, are required to be unbiased, probability-wsighted and
shouid incorporate all avallable information which is relevant
to the assessment, including infermation about past evaents,
current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts
of future events and economic conditions at the reporting
cate. In addition, the eatimation of ECL should also take into
account the time vatue of money.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Co. No. 445931 - U)

(Incorporated in Mataysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Adoption of new and revised MFRS (continued)

(i

(il

MFRS 9, Financial Instrumsnts {continued)
i) Hedge accounting

MFRE 9 establishes a more principle-based appreach to
hedge accounting and addresses inconsistencies and
weaknesses in the cument model in MFRS 139. The general
hedge accounting requirements aim to simplify hedge
accounting, creating & stronger (ink betwsen hedgs
accounting and risk management strategy and permitting
hedge accounting to be applied to a greater varisty of hedging
instrumsnts and risks. The standard doss not explicitiy
address macro hedge accounting, which is being considered
in & geparate project.

The Group and the Company had to change its accounting policies
and make certain retrospective adjustments following the adoption of
MFRS 8. This is disclosed in Note 2(c}).

MFRS 16, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Tha core principle of MFRS 15 is that an entity will recognise revenye
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services io customers in
an amount that refiects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitied in exchange for those goods or sarvices. This core
principle is delivered in a five-step model framework:

o identify the contract{s) with a customer

e Icdentify the performance obligations in the contract

o Determine the transactlon price

s Allocate the transaction price to the perfermance obligations

in the contract

° Recognise ravenue when {or as) the enfity satisfies a
performance cbligation.

The Group had to change its accounting policies and make certain
retrospective adjustments following the adoption of MFRS 15. This is
disclosed in Note 2{c).
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - L))
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
2. Basls of preparation (continued)
(@) Adoption of new and revised MFRS (continued)

(i) IC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Under IC Intsrpretation 22 an entity recognises a non-monetary asset
or nor-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of
advance consideration. MFRS 121 requires an entity to use the
exchange rate at the "date of the transaction” to recerd foreign
currency transactions. It provides guidance on how to determine “the
date of transaction” whan a single payment/recaipt is made, as well
as for situations where multipla paymantsfreceipts are mads.

The date of transaction is the date when the payment or recaipt of
advance conslderation gives rise to the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability when the entity is no longer exposed to foreign
exchange risk. If there are multiple paymsnts or receipts In advance,
the entity should determina the date of the transaction for each
payment or receipt. The Group and the Company have the option to
apply IC Interpretation 22 retrospectively or prospactively.

The adoption of the IC Interpretation 22 did not have any material
impact to the financiat statemants of the Group.

(v)  Amendments to MFRS 128 (Annual Improvemsents to MFRS
Standards 2014 — 2016 Cycla)

The amendments are made on the exemptions from applying the
equity method. MFRS 128 states that when an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is held by, or is held indirectly through, an
entity that is a venture capital crganisation, or a mutual fund, unit trust
and similar entities including Investment-linked insurance funds, the
entity may elect to measure that investments through profit or loss in
accordance with MFRS 9. An entity shall make this elsction
separately for each associate or joint venture, at initial recognition of
the associate or joint venture.

If an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an
associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, the entity may,
when applying the equity method, elact to retain the fair value
measurement applisd by that investment entity associate or joint
venture {o the investment entity associate’s or joint venture's interests
in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment
entity asscciate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which (i)
the invastment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognised:
{ii) the associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and
{lii) the investmeant entity associate or joint venture first becomes a
parent.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any financial impact

on the Group as the Group already applied the principles underthase
amendmanits.

23




CYMAOQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - U)
{Incarporated in Malaysia}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

Standards Issued but not yet effective

The Group and the Company have not adopted the following standards and
interpretations that have been issued but not yet effective:

Effective for annual perlods commencing on or after 1 January 2019

o MFRS 16 Leases
. IC tntarpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

o Amendments to MFRS 112 (Annual Improvements to MFRS
Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

Effective for annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2020
o Dsfinition of Material (Amendments to MFRS 101)
o Definition of Material (Amendments to MFRS 108)

A brief description on the Amendments to MFRSs and new MFRSs above
that have been issued is set aut below:

{i) MFRS 16 Leases

Under MFRS 16 a lessee recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability. The right-of-usa asset is treated similarly to other non-
financial assets and depreciated zccordingly and the liabilify accrues
interest. This will typically produce a front-loaded expense profile
{whereas operating leases under MFRS 117 would typically have had
straight-ine expenses) as an assumed linear depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and the decreasing interest on the liabllity will lead
to an overall decrease of expense over the reporting period.

The lease liability is initially measurad at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted at the rate
implicit in the lease if that can be readily determined. If that rate

cannot be readily determined, the lossee shall use their incremenital
borrowing rate.

As with MFRS 16's predecessor, MFRS 117, lessors classify leases
as oparating or finance in nature. A lease is clagsified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset. Otherwise a lease ie classified as
an operating lease.

For financs leases a lessor recognises finance income over tha leass
torm, based on a pattern reflecting & constant periodic rate of return
on the net investment. A isssor recognises operating leass payments
as income on a straight-ine basis or, if more representative of the
pattern in which benefit from use of the underlying asset is
diminished, another systamatic basis.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
2. Basis of preparation (continued)
(b)  Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
{i) MFRS 16 Leases (continuad)

Recognition exemptions: Instead of applying the recognition
requirements of MFRS 18 described above, a lesses may elect to
account for lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis
ovar the lease term or another systematic basis for the fellowing two
typas of leases:

o leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and containing
no purchase options - this election is made by class of
underlying asset; and

o leases where the underlying asset has a low value whan new
(such as personal computers or small itams of office furniture)
— this election can ke made on a iease-by-lease bhasis.

{ii) IC Interpretation 23 Uncertalnty over Income Tax Treatments

IC Interpretation 23 provides guidance on how to recognise and
measure deferred and currentincome tax assets and liabilities where
there is uncertainty over a tax treatmant. If an entity concludes that it
is not probable that the tax treatment will be accepted by the tax
authority, the effect of the tax uncertainty should be includad in the
period when such determination i made. An entity shall measura the
sffect of uncertainty using the method which best predicts the
regolution of the uncertainty.

(i)  Amendments to MFRS 112 {Anpual Improvements to MFRS
Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

Under MFRS 112 Income Taxes, Amendments to MERS 112 {Annual
Impravemants to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle), an entity shall
recognise the income tax consequences of dividends as definad in
MFRS 9 when it recognises a liabifity to pay a dividend. The income
tax consequences of dividends are linkad more directly to past
transactions or events that gensrated distributable profits than to
distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity shall recognise the
income fax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive Income or equity according to where the antity
originally recognised those past transacticns or events.

Early application of these amendments is permitted provided that the
entity discloses the fact. When an entity first applies these
amendments, it shall apply them to the incomse tax consequences of
dividends recognised on or after the beginning of the eariiest
comparative period.

The Group plans to assess the potential effect of the adoption of the abhove
new standards an thair financial statements in 2019.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

{Co. No. 445831 - U}

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

2.  Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards issued but not yet effective {(continued)

{iv)

Definition of Materlal (Amandments to MFRS 101 and MFRS 108)

In Getober 2018, the I|ASB issued Definition of Material
(Amendments to MFRS 101 and MFRS 108). The amendments
charify and align the dafinition of 'material’ as and provide guidance
to help improve consistency in the application of that concept
wheneavar it is used in MFRS.

The term of materiality has besn amended, and has defined as
“Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial stataments make on the basis of those
financiat statements, which provide financia! information about a
spacific reporting entity.”

The materiality requirements of MFRS 101 have been amended to
emphasise that information should not be aggregated or
disaggregated in a way that obscures material information. The
changes also highlight that matarality applies to all aspects of
financial statements, including the primary financiat statements, the
notes and specific disclosures required by individual MFRSs. The
purpose is to encourage entities (and others involved in the
preparation and review of financial statements) to give careful
conslderation to presentation requirements, and to the items that
need to be included in financial staternents.

The content of primary statement line items has been clarified,
including that as well as aggregating immaterial items, individual
lines that contain significant items may naad to be disaggregated.
Additional guidance has also heen added for the use of subtotals,
requiring that these are derived using amocunts that are reported in
accerdance with MFRS.

The amendmeants apply prospectively for annual period on or after 1
January 2020, with eariy application permiited. Thare lg no potential
effect on the amendments of these standards as the amendments
only affect the disclosures of the financial statemants of the Group
and the Company.
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CYMAQ HOLBINGS BERHAD

(Co. No. 445831 - 1))

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

(€)

Changes tn accounting policies and disclosures

The Group applied MFRS 15 and MFRS § for the first time. The nature and
effect of the changes as a resuit of adoption of these new accounting
standards are described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018,
but do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Group. The
Group has not early adoptad any standards, interpretations or amsndments
that have been issued, but are not yet effective.

(i}

MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

MFRS 15 supersedes MFRS 111 Construction Contracts, MFRS 118
Revenus and relafed Interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to ali revenue arising from contracts with customers.
MFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers and requires that revenue pe
recognigad at an amount that reflacts the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer.

MFRE 15 requires entitics to exercise judgement, taking into
consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when
applying aach step of the mode! to coniracts with their customers.
The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract and the coste directly related to fulfiling a
contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.

The Group adopted MFRS 15 using the modifisd retrospective
method of adoption with the date of inifial application of 1 January
2018. Under this method, the standard can be applied either to all
contracts at the date of initial application or only to contracts that are
not completed at this date. The Group elected to apply the standard
only to contracts that are not completed as at 1 January 2018,

The cumulative effect of initially applying MFRS 15 is recognised at
the date of initial application as an adjustmant to the opening balance
of retained earnings. Therefore, the comparative Information was not
restated and continues to be reported under MFRS 111, MFRS 118
and relatad Interpretations.

However, there is no financial impact on the adoption of MFRS 15 to
the Group as there is no past record on the variable consideration,
such as right of return and volume rebates te its customers. The
Group has recogrised its revenue bssed on the performance
obligation satisfiad at a point in time in prior years.
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CYMAOC HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Co. No. 445831 - U)

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

{c} Changes in accounting pollcies and disclosures {continued)

(i1

MFRS b Financial Instruments

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces MFRS 13¢ Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or aftar 1 January 2018, bringing togathsr all three
aspects of the accounting for financlal instruments: classification and
measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting.

The Group and the Company applied MFRS 9 retrospectively, with
an initial application date of 1 January 2018. The Group anrd the
Company have not restated the comparative information, which
continues to be reported under MFRS 138. Differences arising from
the adoption of MFRS 9 have been recognised directly in relained
earnings and other components of equity.

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the
original maasurement categeries under MFRS 138 and the new
measurement categories under MFRS 9 for each class of the
Group's and the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities
as at 1 January 2018.

The effect of adopting MFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial
assete at 1 January 2018 relates solaly to the new impairment
requirements.

{i) Clagsification and measurement of financlal asssts and
financial liabllitles

Group
Original
carrylng New
Criginal New ampunt  carrying
classificatlon clagsificatlon  under amount
under MFRS under MFRS MFRS undar
Nota 138 L 138 MFRS B
Flrancial RM RM
fssets
Trade and
other Loan and Amorised
recelvables 30 recaivabies cost 12 568,241 12 568 341
Caeh and
bank Laan and Amorizad
halancas 30 recaivabiles cost 5458177 5458177
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD

(Co. No. 445831 - L)
{Incerporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

(6} Changes in accounting policles and disclosures {continued)

fit) MFRS 9 Financial Instruments {continued)

()

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial llabllities {continued)

Company
Crigtnal
camying Mew
OrigTnal Naw amaunt  carrylng
claselfication classification  undar amount
under MFRS under MFRS MFRS under
Nota 138 B 138 MFRS &
Financial RM RM
asaets
Trada and
other Loan and Amgriized
receivables 30 recelvatiles coat 10,670,381 1,804 406
Cazsh and
bank Lagn and Armortised
balances 30 recelvatiles cast 30,305 30,305

Trade and other receivables that were classified as loans and
receivables under MFRS 139 are now classified at amortisad
cost. Trade and other raceivables financial assets (i.e., Loan
te subsidiaries) classified as Loans and receivables as at 31
Decaember 2017 are held to collect contractual cash flowe and
give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of
principal and interest. An increase of RM8,865,895 In the
allowance for impairment over these raceivables was
recognisad in cpening retained earnings at 1 January 2018
on transition to MFRS 9.

There are no changes in ¢lassification and measurement for
the Group’s and the Company's financial liabilites.

The classification is hased on two criteria; the Group's
business modsl for managing the assets; and whether the
instruments' confractual cash fiows represent ‘solely

payments of principal and inferest’ on the principa! amount
outstanding.

The assessment of the Group's business model was mads
as of the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. The
agsessment of whather contractual cash fiows on debt
Instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest was
made based on the facts and circumstances as at the initial
racognition of the assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of MFRS
9 did not have a significant impact to the Group.
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2,

3.

Basls of preparation (continued)

(c} Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
{ii MFRS 8 Financial Insfrumants {continusd)
(ii) impairment

MFRS 2 replaces the ‘incurred loss' model in MFRS 139 with
an ‘expacted credit loss' (ECL) model. The new impairment
model applies to financial assets measured at amorised cost,
confract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to
investments in equity instruments, Undar MFRS 9, credit
losses are racognised earlier than under MFRS 139, For
assefs in the scope of the MFRS 9 impairment medeal,
impairment iosses are generally expected to increase and
become more volatile,

However, there is no impact on the changes in impairment
maodel to the Group. The Company has determined that the
application of MFRS ©'s impairment requirements at 1
January 2018 results in an additional allowancs for
impalment as follows.

RM

Loss allowance at 31 Decembear 2017 under

MFRS 139 -
Additional impairment recognised at 1 January

2018 on:
Trade and cother receivables as at 31

Dscember 2017 {Nete 21) 8,865,895
Logs allewance at 1 January 2018 undar MFRS

9 8,865,895

(iii) Hedga accounting

There is no impact on the changes in hedge accounting as
the Group does not apply hedge accounting.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparstion of the Group's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
reveénues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of eontingent liabilities
at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about thesa assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could requirs a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

(@) Judgements made In applying accounting policles
in the process of applying the Group’s and the Company's accounting
policies, management is of the opinfon that there are no instancas of

application of judgement which are expected to have a significant effect on
the amounts recegnised in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

3.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

(k)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reparting date that have a significant risk of a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and llabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

()

(il

(i)

(iv)

Useful lives of piant and equipment

The cost of plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line
basis cver the assets’ astimated economic useful lives. Management
estimates the useful lives of these plant and equipment to ba within
five (5}to ten (10) years. These are common life expectancies applied
in the wood preduct industry. Changes in the expeacted level of usage
and technological developmants could impact the sconomic useful
lives and the residual vafues of these assets, thersfore, future
depreciation charges could be revised. The carrying amount of the
Group's ptant and equipment at the reporting date is disclosed in Note
16 to the financiaj statements.

Incoma taxes

There are certain transactions and computations for which the
ultimate tax determination may be different from the initial estimate.
The Group and the Company recognises tax liahilitiss basad on its
understanding of the pravailing tax laws and estimates of whethar
such taxes will he due in the ordinary course of business. Where the
final outcome of thesa matters is different from the amounts that ware
initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and

deferred tax provigions in the year in which such determination is
mades.

Impalrment of proparty, plant and sguipment

The Group determines at each reporting date whether a trigger for an
impairment review axist. If an Impairment review is neceseary, the
Directors estimates the recoverable amount of the asset by reference
to the higher of value in use (“VIU") bain? the net present value of
future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset, and fair
vaiue less costs to dispose {'FVLC % In estimating the racoverable
amount of the assets in use, the Directors rely on independsnt
profassional valuers to determine FYLCD.

Garrying value of investment in subsidlary companles

Investment in subsidlary company is reviewed for Impairment
annually in accordance with its accounting policy as disclosed in Note
4(k)(ii) to the financlal statements, or whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recovarable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

~ {b) Key scurces of estimatlon uncertainty (continued)

{iv}

(v)

(i}

Carrylng value of Investment in subsidiary companles
{continuad)

Significant judgement |s required in the estimation of the present
valua of future cash flows generated by the subsidiary, which involves
uncertainties and are significantly affacted by assumptlions and
judgemants made regarding estimates of futura cash flows and
discount rates. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
carying value of investments in subsidiary companies.

Impalrment of financlal aassts

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss ratea. The Group usss
judgement in making these assumptions and sslecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of
sach reporting pariod.

Previously, an impairment loss is recognised when there is objective
ovidence that a financial asset is impaired. Management spacificaliy
reviews its loans and receivables financial assets and analyses
historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer
creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in the
customer payment terms when making a judgement to evaluate the
adequacy of the allowance for impairment lossss.

Where there is chjective evidence of impairment, the amount and
timing of future cash flows are estimated based on historical loss
experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. If the
expectation is differant from the estimation, such difference will
impact the carrying valus of receivables.

Allowance for inventories

Reviews are made periodically by management en damaged,
obsolete and slow-moving Inventories. These reviews mequire
judgment and sstimates. Possible changes in these estimates could
result in revisions to the valueation of inventories.

4.  Signlficant accounting policles

(@) Consolidation and investmenis in assoclates and joint
arrangements

(i)

Basls of consolldation
These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements

of Cymao Holdings Berhad and entities controlied by it and its
subsidiaries {"the Group").
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a} Consofldation and investments in associates and joint
arrangements (continued)

{i)

(ii}

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Gontrol is achieved when the investor:
* has power over the Investee:

o is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investes: and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

If facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listad above, the investor shall
reassess whather it contrals the investes,

An investor can have power ovar an investee even if it holds less than
a majority of the voling rights of an investee. All facts and
circumstances are considered in assessing whether or not voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, for example,
through:

. contractual arrangements with other vote holders:

° rights from other contractual arrangements that indicate that
the company has the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee;

o the size of the company’s holding of voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of holdings of other vote holders; or

- potential voting rights he!d by the company that are
substantive.

Investment In subsidiaries

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins from the date the investor gains
control of an investee and ceases when the investor loses control of
an investee.

The purchase, or acquisition, method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of
the acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets transfarred,
aquity instruments issued and liabilities incurred at the date of
axchange.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and lossas
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

4. Significant accounting policias (continued)

(a) Consolidation and investments In associates and joint
arrangements (continued)

{ii)

(iii

Investment in subsldlaries (continued)

Non-coniroling interests in subsidiaries are presanted in the
consolidatad statement of financial position separately from the
aquity attributable to :eu:,|uit1.|r owners of the parent company, Non-
controlling sharehcfders’ interest may initially be measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling sharehalders’ proportionate share
of the fair value of the acquiree's identifiable net assats. The choice
of measuremsnt basis is made on each acquisition individually.
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of nan-controlling
interests is tha amount of those intarests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interests’ share of subsaquent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income Is sitributed to non-cantrolling interests
Eu?n if this resuits in the non-controlling interssts having a deficit
alance.

Acquisitions or disposals of non-controlling interests which do not
affect the parent company's central of the subsidiary are accounted
for as trangactions with equity holders. Any difference bstween the
fair value of the amount paid or received and the change in non-
conirelling interssts is recognised directly in equity.

When the Group ceases to have contro! of a subsidiary, any retainedt
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost with the adjustment being recognised in profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal of the centrolling interest. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilitias of the subsidiary
(this may mean that these amounts are reclassified to profit or loss er

transferred to another category of equity as spacified by applicable
MFRS).

Investment in agsoclates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influenca and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the powsr to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The investment in an
associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted for the Group's
shara of in the net assets of tha investee after the data of acquisition,
and fer any impairment in value (equity method), except when the
investment is classified as held-for-sale in accordance with MFRS 5
Non-current asssts held-for-sale and discontinued operations. If the
Graup's share of logses of an associate equal or excesds its intsrast
in the associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

4.  Significant accounting policles {continued)

(@) Consolidation and investments in associates and joint
arrangements {continued)

{iv)

(v)

Joint venture

A joint vanture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint contral of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement, The investment in a joint ventura is initially recognised
at cost and adjusted for the Group’s share of in the nat assets of the
investee after the date of acquisition, and for any impairmant in value
(equity method), except when tha investment is classified as held-for-
sale in accordance with MFRS 5 Non-current assets hetd-for-sale and
disconiinued operations. If the Group’s share of iosses of a jaint
venture equals or excesds its interest in the Ijnint venture, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losseas.

Whan the Group loses joint contrel, it proportionately reclassifies the
related items which were previously accumulated in equity through
other comprehensive income to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment. If an investment remains, it is maasured fo fair value, with
the fair valus adjustment baing recognised in profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on dispesal.

Joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby tha parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

Tha Group recognises tha following in relation to Its interests in a joint
oparation:

. its assets, including its share of any assats held joinily;

. its lhabilitios, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly:;

a its revenue from the sale of its ehare of the output arising from
the joint cperation;

e ite share of tha revenue from the sale of the output by ths joint
oparation; and

. itsE expensas, including its shara of any expenses incurred
jointly.

(b} Forelgn currency transactions

{)

Functional and presentation currencles

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presentad in
Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which 8 also the Company's functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functicnal
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency.
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b}  Foreign currency transactions (continued)

(it

(i}

Forelgn currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective
functional currencies of the Group and of the Company and are
recordad on initiel recognition in the functional currencies at
exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates.

Monetary assets and llabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-
manetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measurad
at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-menstary items denominated in
foreign currencies maasured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determinad.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or
on franslating monetary items at the reporting date are recognised in

rofit or ioss except for exchange differances arising on monetary
itoms that form part of the Group’'s net investment in feralgn
cperations, which are recognised initially in other comprehsnsive
ncome and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve
in aﬂuity. Tha foreign currency translation reserve is reclassified from
ag i:-,rt_to profit or loss of the Group on disposal of the foreign
operation.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the pericd
excapt for the differences arising on the translation of nen-menetary
ltems in respect of which gains and losses are recognised direcily in
equity. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary ltems
are also recognised directly in aquity.

Forelgn operations

The assets and liabifities of foreign operations are franslated into RM
at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and income and
expensos are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. The exchange differences arising on the tranglation are
taken directly to other comprehensive income. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised In other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equify under foreign
currency translation reserve ralatin? ta that paricular foreign
aperation is recognisad in the profit or Toss.

Goodwill and fair valus adjustments arising on the acquisition of
foreign operations are treatad as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign
operaticns and translated at the closing rate at the reperting date.

The closing rates used in the translation for foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are as follows:

2018 2017
RM RM
1 United States Dollar 41510 40350
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

4, Significant accounting policles {continued)

(c)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the
goods or services are transferred to the customsr at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arrangemesnts because it typically controls the goods
or gervices befors transferring them to the customar.

(i

(i

Sale of goods

Revenus from sale of goods is recognised net of taxes and upen
transfer of control of the assets to the customer, also considers
whether there are othar promises in the contract that are separate
performance chligations to which a portion of the transaciion price
needs to be allocated.

Revanue from services

Revenue from sarvices rendered is recognised net of taxes and
discounts as and when the services are performed.

Employee bensfits

(i}

(ii}

Short tarm beneflts

VWages, salaries, bonuses and soccial security contributions are
recognised as an expense in the financial year in which thes
associated services are renderad by employees of the Group. Short
term accumulating compensated absences such a8 paid annual
leave are racognised when services are rendered by employeas that
increasa their entitlement to future compensated absences, and short
term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
are racagnised when the absences oocur,

Refined contribution plans

Dafined contributlon plans are post-employment benefit plans under
which the Group pays fixad contributions into separate entitles or
funds and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if any of the funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay
all smployee benefits relating to amployee services in the current and
praceding financial years. Such contributions are recognised as an
expense in the profit or loss as incurred.

The Group makes contribution to the Employees Pravident Fund in
hMalaysia, a defined contrbution pension scheme. Contributions to
defined contribution pension scheme are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related service is parformed.
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4.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e}

M

Income taxes

income tax expense comprises curent and deferred tax. Current tax and
deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates
to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in ather
comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income
or logs for the financial year, using tax rates enacted or suibstantively enacted
at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previcus years. Curent tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from
the declaration of dividends.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences betwaan the
carmying amounts of assats and liahilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not racognised for:

o temporary differences on tha initial recognition of zssets or liabilities
in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

° temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that thay will
not raverse in the foreseeable future; and

o taxable temporary differences ariging on the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reverss, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they refata to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to seftle current tax liabilities and asssts on a net
basis or thair tax assets and liabilities wil! be realised simuitansously.

A deferred tax asset is recognisad for unused tax losses, tax credits and
deductible iemporary differencss, to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred
tax assets are reviewad at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary
shares (“EPS"). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
aftributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the waighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted
for cwn sharas held. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjustad for own shares held, for the effects of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

@

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment iosses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the assat’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
eccnomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced partis derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are chargad
to profit or foss during the financial pariod in which they are incurred.

Freehold land (including iong leasehald land with remaining unexpired lease
term of 100 years and more) is not depreciated but Is subject to impaiment
test if there is any indication of impairment.

Leasehold land with lease period of squal or less than fifty (50) vears is
classified as short lsasshold land whereas leasshold land with lease period
of mare than fifty (50) years is classified as long leasehold land. Leasshold
land ts amortised over the period of the lease term, ranging from fifty-one
{(21) to sevanty-eight (78) years.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis to
write off the cost of the property, plant and equipment over the term of their
estimated yseful lives.

The principal annual rates of depreciation used are as follows:

Buildings 2% - 10%
Renovation 10%
Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Mator vehicles 20%

The resldual values, usesfui life and depreciation method are reviewed at each
financial year end to ensure that the amount, method and pericd of
depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattarn
of consumptlen of the fulure economic benefits embodled in the term of
property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are darecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expacted from its use or disposal. The
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the net carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Land use righis

Land use rights are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition,
land uss rights are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment fosses. The land use rights are amortised over their
lease terms of thirty (30} years.
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4.  Signlficant accounting pollcles {continued)

{i)

)

Inventories

Inventeries comprise raw materials, finished goods and work-in-progress.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on
weighted average basis. The costs of finished goods and work-in-prograss
comprise costs of raw materials, direst labour, other direct costs and
appropriate proportions of manufacturing overheads bassd on normal
oparating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling prica in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sals.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial lizbility or eguity instrument of another entity.

i) Flnancial agseis
Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Financial assets are classified, atinitial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI) and fair value through profit or loss.

The: classification of financial agsets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s and the Company's business model for managing them.
With the exception of frade receivables that do not contain a
gignificant financing component or for which the Group and the
Company have applied the practical expedient, the Group and the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value pius, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing compenent or for which the Group and the Company have
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under MFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value thraugh CCi, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as
the SPPI test and is performad at an instrument level.

The Group and the Company's business model for managing
financial assets rafers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model detarmines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, szlling
the financial assets, or both.
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4, Significant accounting policies (continued)

()  Financial instruments (continued)

{i)

Financial assets (continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 {continued)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trads date,

I.a,, the date that the Group and the Company commit to purchase
or s8ll the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are
classified in four categories:

» Financial assets at amortised cost (debt Instrumants)

* Financial assets at fair valus through OC| with recycling of
cuminative gains and losses (debt instruments)

= Financial assets designated at fair valua through OCI with no
recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon darecognition
{equity Instruments)

= Financial agsets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortissd cost (debt Instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group and the Company.
The Group and the Company measure financlal assets at amortisad
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

< Tha financial asset is hald within a business model with tha
objective to hold financial assaets in order fo collect contractual
cash flows; and

< The contractual terms of the financiat asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principat amount outstanding

Financial assets at amertised cost are subsequently measured ysing
the affective interast (EIR) method and ars subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when ths asset is
deracognised, modified or impaired.

The Group's and the Company's financial assets at amortised cost
includes trade and cthar raceivables and cash and bank balances.
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4, Significant accounting policies (continued)

)] Financial instruments (continued)
i) Financial assets (continued)
Policy appllcable from 1 January 2018 {continusd)
Financlal assets at falr value through OCI (debt Instrumants)

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if
bath of the following conditions are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the
ahbjective of both helding to coltect contractual cash fiows and -
selling; and

= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solsly payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

For debt instruments at falr value through OCI, interest Income,
foreign exchange revaluation and impairmant losses or reversals are
recognised in the statamant of profit or loss and computed in ths
same mannear as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change racognised in OCl is
recycled to profit or loss.

There is no financial asset at fair value through OCI in the Group.

Financial assets designated at falr value through OCI {aqulty
instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify imevocably
its equity investments as aquity instruments designatad at fair value
through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under MFRS
132 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and lesses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recagnised as other income in the
statemant of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Group henefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financlal asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in OCL. Equity instruments designated at
fair value through OCI are not subject to impairmant assessment.

Thera is no financial asset at fair value through OCI in the Group,
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()  Financial Instruments (continued)

{i)

Financilal assets (continued)
Pollcy applicable frem 1 January 2018 (continuad)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upen initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatarily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classifiad as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
af selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separatad embedded darivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not sclely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for dabt instruments to be classitiad at
amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated af fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition if doing so seliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair valus through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for
as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair vaiue
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or |oss.
Reassessment only occurs if there ts sither a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flowe that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset ouf of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embadded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. Tha financial asset host
togsther with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in
its entirety as a financial asset at falr value through profit or loss.

Ehere is no financial assst at fair value through profit or loss in the
roup.
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4, Signlficant accounting policies (continued)

(3  Flnancial Instruments {continued)

(i

Financial assets (continued)

Pollcy applicable from 1 January 2018 {continued)

Darecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarlly derscognised
when: Group and the Company have transferred its rights to receive
cash fiows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without matertal delay to a third party
under & ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (&) the Group and
the Company have transfarred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or {b) the Group and the Company have neither
transferred ner retained substantialiy all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transfsrred control of the asset.

When the Group and the Company have transferrad its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retainad the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferredt nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the agset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group and the Company
continie to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group and the Company
also recognise an associated lability. The transferrad asset and the
associated liability are measured on a hasis that refiscts the rights
and obligations that the Group and the Company have retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferrad asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group and the Company could be required to repay.

Policy applicable hefore 1 January 2018

Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group and Company becoms a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instrurnent.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value, plus, inthe case of financial assets not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group and the Company dstermine the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition, and the categories include
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity
invastments, loans and recaivablas and available-for-sale financial
assets.
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4, Significant accounting policies (continued)

(}  FInancial instruments {continued)

i

Financial assets (continued)
Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 {continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on thair
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair valus through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as financlal assets at fair value
through profit cr loss if they are held for trading or are deslgnatad as
such upen initial recognition. Financial assets held for trading are
darivatives (including separated smbedded derivatives) or financial
assatls acquired principally far the purpose of selling i the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value thraugh
profit or loss are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains
or net fogses on financial assats at fair value through profit or loss do
not include exchange differences, interest and dividend incoms.
Exchange differencas, interest and dividend income on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised separately
in profit or loss as part of othar losses or other income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or logs could be presented
as current or non-current, Financial assets that is held primarily for
trading purpcses are presented as current whereas financial assets
that is not hald primarily for trading purposes are preserted as
current or noh-currant basad on the settiement date.

Held-to-maturity investments

Financial assets with fixed or daterminable payments and fixed
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold the investment to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losees are recognised in profit or loss when the hald-to-

maturity investments are derecognised or impaired, and through the
amortisation process.

Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assets,

except for those having maturity within tweive (12) months after the
reporting date which are classified as current.
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()  Financial instruments (continued)

{0

Financial assets (continued)
Follcy applicable hefore 1 January 2018 (continued)
Loans and recelvables

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an activa market are classified as loans and receivables.

Subsequent to inltial recognition, loans and recelvables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methaod.
(ains and losses are racognised in profit or loss when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the
amortisation process.

Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for
those having maturity dates later than twelve (12) months aftar the
reparting date which are classifiad as non-cument.

Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that are
designated as available for sale or are not classified in any of the
threa preceding categorles.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from changes in fair value
of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
incoma, except that impairment logses, foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The
curnulative gain or loss previous!y recognised in other comprehensiva
income is reclassified from aquity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment when the financieﬂ asset s derocognised. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest mathod is recognisad in profit
of loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equlty instrument are
recagnised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive payment
is establishad.

Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost iess impairment loss.

Avaitable-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current
assets unless they are expectad to be reallsed within twelve (12)
maonths after the reporting date.

Aflnancial assst is derecuﬁnisad when the contractual right ta receive
cash flows from the asset has expired. On derecogniticn of a financial
asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss
that had besn ram?nised in other comprehensive income is
recognisad in profit or [oss.
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{i) Financlal instruments (continued)

(i}

(fi}

Financlal assets (continued)
Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 {continued}
Avgilable-for-sale financlal assats (continued)

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of asssts within the period generally
establishad by regulation or conventien In the marketplace
concerned. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised or derecognised on the frade date l.e., the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the assst,

FInancial liabilitles

Financial liabilities are clagsifisd according to the substance of tha
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability.

Financia! liabilities, within the scops of MFRS 8, are recognised in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group and
the Company become a pary to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. Financial liabilities are classifled as either
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or financial
liabilittes measurad at amortised cost.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial llabllities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabliitles designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financia! liabilities held for trading include derivatives entered into by
the Group and the Company tha?cto not meet the hedge accounting
criteria. Derivative liabilities are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently stated at fair value, with any resuliant gains of losses
recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses on derivatives include
exchange differences.

Financial llabilities measured at amortized cost

The Group's and the Company's financial liabilities measured at
amortisad cost include trade and non-trade payables and loan and
borrowings.

Trade and non-trade payables are recegnised initially at fair value
plus directly attrbutable transaction costs and subseguently
measured at amortised cost using the sffective interest method.

For other financial liabilitias, gains and iosses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the
amortisation process.
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()  Financlal instruments (continued)

{ii)

Financial Habilities {continusd)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost {continued)

A financial liability is deracognised when the obligation under the
liability is extinguished. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same iender on substantially different tarms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a darecognition of the original
liahility and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respactive carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss,

(k) Impairment

(i

Impalrment of financlal assets
Policy applicatile from 1 January 2018

The Group and the Company recognise an allowance for expected
cradit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between tha
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the centract and all
the cash flows that the Group and the Company expect to receive,
discaunted at an approximation of the corlginal effsctive interest rate.
The expected cash flows will inciude cash flews from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancemants that are Integral to the
confractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposuraes for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
racognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
cdefault events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-
month ECL). For those cradit exposures for which there has baen a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowancs is required for credit losses expected over the remaining

life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the defauit (a lifetime
ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group and the
Company apply a simplified appreach in calculating ECLs. Therefare,
the Group and the Company do not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a ioss allowance based on |fetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group and the Company have establishad a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted fer forward-locking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment,
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4.  Significant accounting polictes (continued)

(k) Impairment (continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets {continued)
Policy applicable from 1 January 2048 (continued)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group and the
Company apply the low credit risk simplification. At every reporting
date, the Group and the Company evaluate whether the debt
instrument is censidered to have low credit risk using all reascnable
and suppartable information that is available without undue cost or
affort. In making that svaluation, the Group and the Company
regssess the intarnal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition,
the Group and the Company considers that there has besn a
significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are
more than one year past dus. it is the Group’s policy to measura
ECLs on such Instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when
thera has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the allowance wiil be based on the lifefime ECL,

The Group and the Company consider a financial asset In default
when contractual payments are one year past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group and the Company may also consider a
financizl asset to be in defauit when internal or external information
indicates that the Group and the Campany ars unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancemesnts held by the Group and the Company, A
financial assst is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Tha Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether
there iz any objective evidence that a financlal assst is impaired. A
financial asset or & group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, and enly if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
cne or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset {an incurred ‘loss event) and that loss event has an impact
on tha estimated future cash flows of the financial asset of the Group
and the Company that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in intsrest or principal payments. The probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
ohservable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in tha
estimatad future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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(k)  Impalrment (continued)

{i)

(fi}

Impalrmant of financlal assets (continued)

Policy applicahle before 1 January 2018 (continued}

Trade and non-trade receivables and other flnancial
assaoats carrled at amortised cost

To determine whather there is objective evidence that an
impairment toss on financial assets has been incurred, the
Company considars factors such as the probabllty of
Ingolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
cefault or'significant delay in payments.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
recgivables, assels that are assessed not to be impairad
individually are subssquently assessed for Im?mrman_ on a
collective basis based in similar risk characteristics. Objectiva
evidance of lméaairmant for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Company's past experience of collecting
Payments _an increase In the number of delayed dpagmants in
he portfolio past the average credit period and obsarvable
changes in national or loccai economic conditions that
correlate with defauli on receivables.

if any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial assef's original effective interast
rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or ioss.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairmant ioss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a
trade receivable becomes uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account.

If in & subsequent pericd, the amount of the impairment loss
decreasss and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring aftor the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised Impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that tha carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its amortised cost ai the reversal date. Tha amount of reversal
is recagnised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
inctication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an
asset is requirad, the Group and the Company make an estimate of
the asset's recoverable amount.

An asset's racoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
loss costs to sell and its value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest lavels for which there
are si?arataiy identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units
{EIGGU!.I .
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4.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

()

(m}

Impairment (continued)
{iij Impairment of nen-financlal assets {continusd)

In assessing value in uss, the estimated future cash flows expacted
to be genarated by the assst are discounted te their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflacts current market
agsessments of the time valua of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where the camrying amount of an assst exceeds its
recovarable amount, the asset |s written down to its recoverable
amount. Impairment logses recognised in respect of 2 CGU or groups
of GGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
gocdwill allocated to thoss units or groups of units and then, to reduce
tha carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units
oh a pro-rata basis.

fmpairment lesses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets
that are praviously revaluad where the revalusation was taken to other
comprehensiva income. In this case the impairment is also
recognised In other comprehensive income up to the amount of any
previous revaluation,

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indicatlon that previously recegnised impairment logses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised
impairment loss ls reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asest's recoverable amount since
the last impairment ioss was recognised. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the assst is increased to its recoverable amount.
That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised previously. Such reversal Is recognised in profit or loss
unless that asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. Impairment loss an
goodwill s not reversed in a subsequent pariod.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment with a maturity of three
(3) months or less is normally classified as being short-term. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowing in current liabilities.

Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal group) classified as held for sals are
measure at the lower of carrying amount and fair value lass cost to sell.

Non-current assets (or disposal group) are classified as held for sale if their

‘carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than

through cantinuing use.
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(m} Assets classified as held for sale {continued)

(n)

(0)

P

This is the case, when the asset (or dispesal group) is available forimmsdiate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such assets (or disposal groups) and the sale is
congidered to be highly probable.

A sale is considered to be highly probable if the appropriate level of
management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group), and
an active pregramme to locate & buyer and completa the plan has been
inltiated. Further, the asset (or disposal group) has been actively marketed
for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. In
addition, the sale is expacted to qualify for recognition as a complated sale
within one (1) year from the date that it is clagsified as held for sale.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interset in the
assets of the Group and the Company after deducting all of its labilities.
Ordinary shares are classifisd as equity.

Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of diractly
atiributable incremental transaction costs. Dividends on ordinary sharas are
recognised as an appropriation of retained profits upon declaration, and are
only taken up as liabilities upon the necessary approval being obtained.

Treasury shares

When shares of the Company, that have not been cancelled, recognised as
€quity are reacquired, the amount of consideration paid Is recognised directly
in equity. Reacquired shares are classified as treasury shares and presented
a8 a deduction from total equity. No gain or less Is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury sharas. When
treasury shares are reissued by resale, the difference between the sales
consideration and the carrylng amount is recognised in squity.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of that
asse!. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the activities to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the
expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are

capitalised until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use
or sale.

All ather borrowings costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they

are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the
Group and the Company incurred in conneaction with the borrowing of funds.
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(q) Leases

(i)

(ii)

{ifi)

(iv)

Classification

Alease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to
the Group all the risks and rewards incidantal to ownership. Leasas
of land and buildings are classified as nperatinﬁ or finance leases in
the same way as leases of other assets and the land and buildings
elements of a lease of land and buildings are consicerad separately
for the purposes of lease classification. All leasss that do not transfer
substantially all the rieks and rewards are classified as oparating
leases, except land held for own use undar an operatinﬁ lsags, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately from tha fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unlass the building
is also clearly held under an operating lease.

Finance |eases — the Group as lsgsee

Assats acqulred by way of hire purchase or finance leases are stated
at an amount equal to the lower of their fair values and the present
valus of the minimum laase payments at the inception of the leases,
less accumulated depreciation andg impairment |psses. The
currespcnding liabiiity is included in the statemants of financial
position as borrowings. In calculating the present value of the
minimum lease payments, the discount Tactor used is the interest rate
implicit in the iease, when it is practicable to dstermine, otherwise,
the Group's incremantal borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct costs
are also added to the carrying amount of such assets.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance costs and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. Finance costs, which represent
the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair
value of the assets acquired, are recognised in the profit or logs over
the term of the relevant leass so as fo produce a constant pericdic
rate of charge on the remaining balancs of the abligations for each
accounting pariod.

Qperating leases — the Group as lessas

in the case of a [ease of land and buildings, the minimum lease
payments or the up-front payments made are allocated, whenever
necessary, betwaen the land and the buildings etements in proportion
to the relative fair values for leasehold interasts in the land element
and buildings element of the lzase at the incaption of the ease. The
up-front ‘Jaayment rapresents prapaid lease payments and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating leagse - the Group as lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rawards of ownership of the asset are clageified as operating leases.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and racognised over
the lease term on tha same bases as rental income.

The depreciation policy for leased assets is in accordance with that for
depreciable prapsrty, plant end equipment as described in Note 4(g).
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Slgnlificant accounting policies (continued)

{r)

(s)

(t)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specifisd debtor fails to make payment when due.

Financial guarantee contracts are recogniged initizlly as a liabilty at fair
value, net transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
guarantee contracts are recognised as income in prafit or ioss overthe pariod
of the guarantes. If the debtor fails to make payment relating to financial
guarantee contract when it is dus and the Group, as the Issuer, ig required
te reimburse the holder for the assaciated loss, the liability is measured at
the higher of the best estimate of the axpanditure required to settle the
present cbligation at the raporting date and the amount initially recognised
less cumulative amortisation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group and ths Company have present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable
that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benafits will be required to
settle tha obligations, and a reliablé estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions ars reviewed at each reporting dats and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimats. If it is no longer probable that an cutflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the
provision will be reversed. Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a current per-tax rate that reflacts,
whera appropriate, the risks specific to the liability and the present valus of
the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as finance cost.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
whose existencs will be corfirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or mere uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a
present obligation that is not recognised becauss it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingant
liability also arises in tha extremely rare case where there is & liability that
cannot be recognised becauss it cannot be measured reliably. However,
contingent liabilities do not include financial guarantes contracts.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose
existance will be confirmed by the occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or
mare uncertain future avents beyond the contrel of the Group. The Group
doss not recognise confingent asssts but discloses its existence where
inflows of economic benefits are probable, but not virtually certain.

Contingent liabllities and assets are not recegnisad in the Statement of
Financial Position of the Company.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No, 445831 - L}
{Incerporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

4. Significant accounting poiicies (continued)

(u)

(v)

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in businass
activities from which it may earn revenue and ineur axpensas, including
revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's
other components. All cperating sagments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the chief operating decision maker, which in this case is the
Group Managing Director, to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is avallabls,

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to =ali an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction batween market participants at tha
measurament date. The fair value measurement is basad onthse presumption
that the transactions to sell the asset or transfer the liahility takes place sither:

Ei} In the principal market for the asset or llability, or

i} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability.

'cl;he principal or the most advantagsous market must be accessibla by the
roup.

The fair value of an assat or liability is measured using the assumptions that
markst participants would use when pricing the asset or liabifity, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
mar«et participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and bast use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best usa.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
valus, maximising the use of relavant observabls inputs and minimising the
use unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measurad or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described

as follows, based on the iowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whols:

i} Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

{ii} Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lawest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observabla

{iii) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is
significant to the fair value maasurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
befween lavels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the

lowest tevel input that is significant to the fair value measurament as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.
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CYMAQO HCLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445831 -3
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

5. Revenue

Type of goods

Logs

Plywood

Veneaer

Cther woad products

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

Market of goods

Export sales
Local salss

Total revenue from contracts with
customers

Operation based revenue
Klang

Pahang
Sandakan

Total revenua from contracts with
customers

Timing of revenue recognlition

Goods transferred at a point in time

Total revenus from contracts with
customers

6. Intorest income

Interest income from:

Fixed deposits

Group
2018 2017
RM RM
24,456 -
86,916,892 87,870,544
108,116 4,755,191
083,424 663,410
§8,033,588 93,089,145
52,385 074 43 347,985
35,648,814 49,741,180
86,033 888 093,082,145
24,925 018 32,308,030
2537 817 -
80,571,353 60,781,115
88,033 588 93,068,145
88,033 888 93,089 145
88,033 888 83,089,145
Group
2018 2017
RAM RM
30,448 41,117
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - )
(Incorporated in Malaysia}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
7. Other operating income

Group
2018 2017
RM RM
(3ain on disposal of property, plant and equipmsnt 20,000 151,400
Gain on foreign exchange
- Raalised 485 450 21,180
- Unraslised - 104 843
Liabilities no longer in existence written back 9,079 -
Miscellanaous income 130,254 222,483
Rental incoms 537,072 32,500
1,192,755 632,515
8. Other operating expenses
Group
2018 2017
RM RM
Allowance for slow moving inventories 111,510 -
Farming sxpenses 19,842 2,130
tnventories written off - 53,882
Loss on damage of materials 161,851 23,301
Loss on disposal of materials - 223,072
l.oss an disposal of investmant (Note 19) 10,830 -
Loss on fereign exchange
- Realised 4,394 143,958
- Unrealised - 1,473
Other expense - 168,978
Property, plant and equipment written off 84,522 -
392,049 814,882
S. Impairment on financial assets
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM
Impairment on recalvables
{Nota 21} 175,08¢ 83,626
Impairment loss on amount
due from substdlary {Note 21) - - 1,307,824
Revareal of impairment
on recelvables (Mote 21) (311,584) {184 8687) -
{136,485) {90,881) 1,307 824
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - )
(Incorporated [n Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

10. Employee banefits expense

Oroup Company
201B 2M7 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM
Confributions to defined
cantrbution plan 280,898 212,644 - -
Confribullzns to employmant
insurance systam 2,305 - - -
Salaries end wages 16,105,845 12,020 965 24,000 &0,000
Soctal secunly contributions 44,239 34,605 - -
15,444 260 12,268,207 24,000 60,000

Included in employee banefits expense of the Group and of the Company are
Executive Directors’ remuneration consisting salaries and other emoluments and fees
amounting tc RM1,080,000 (2017: RM1,138,800} and RM24,000 (2017: RMBD,000)
respectively as further disclosed in Note 11 to the financtal statements.

11. Dlrectors’ remuneration

The details of remunsration received and recsivable by Directors of the Group and of
the Company during the financial year ars as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 201r
Executive Diractors' RM RM RM RM
rarmunsration (Note 100
-Faer 24,000 48,000 24,000 48,000
- Salaries and other
empluments 1,056,000 1,080,800 - 12,000
1,080,000 1,138,800 24,000 80,000
Man-executive Directors’
remuneration:
-Fam 144,000 144,000 144 000 144 000
Tokal Direclors'
remuneration 1,224,000 1,282,800 168,000 204,000

The Directors' remuneration represents remuneration for direciors of the Group, the
Company and its subsidiaries to comply with the requirements of Companies Act,
2016. The names of directors of subsidiaries and their remuneration details are set
cut in the respective subsidiaries’ statutory accounts and the said information is
deemed incorporated herein by such reference and made a part hereof.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445831 -1
(Incorporated in Malaysia}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

11.  Directors’ remuneration {continued)

The nurmber of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the
financial year fell within the following bands is analysed below:

Number of Directors

2018 2017
Executive Directars:
RM300,001 - RMB0G,000 2 2
Mon-executive Directors:
Below RM50.000 2 2
RMSE0,000 — RN 100,000 i 1
REM100,001 — RM250,000 1 1
12. Loss from operations
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 201
{Cither than those disclozed RM RM RM RM
inMNota 8, 7, 8,9, 10 and
11, loss from vperations
have besn arrived at aftar
charging:
Amordisation of land use
rights {Mote 17) 53,230 53,230 -
Auditors’ remLneration
- stalutory audit 127,000 127,000 42 000 42 Q00
- other services 40,000 668,680 40,000 48 000
Bad debts writtan off 384,565 124 887 - -
Depreciation of propary,
plant and eguipment
(Mote 16) 2818111 3,804,396 - 10,491
Renlal expanses B60,031 107 474 - -
13.  Finance costs
Group
2018 2017
Interest expansas: RA RM
- Bankers' acceptance 270,974 206 976
- Bank overdraft 14,726 12,488
- Hire purchase 45,387 13,98¢%
- Term leans 83,172 97 500
424 262 330,963

58




CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445831 - V)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DEGEMBER 2018

14.  Income tax expense

Group Company
218 017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM
Current taxafion 2,245 - -
Daferred 1ax liabilities
{Mote 27) (113.118) 65,978) - -
{110,823) {63,678) - -
Under/{QOver) provislon in
pricr years 8,005 (12.619) - -
{104.818) (B2 537) - -

A reconcliiation of income tax expanse applicable to loss befora taxation at the
statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective incoma tax rate of
the Group and the Company is as follows:

Qreup Company
2018 2017 2048 2017
RM RM RM RM

Loss befora taxation {4,301, 066} {7.561,523) {1,779,829) {631,200)
Taxalion at Malaysian

slatutory tax rate

of 24% (2017 24%) {1.054,072) {1,738, 848) (427,111) {127,500)
Mon-tax deduclible expenses 414,933 621423 427 111 127 508
Nor-taxable [noomse - (20,280 - -
Tax affact an doubte

deductlon expenses (78,7200 (164672 - -
Effect of deducitbla

temporary differences

arising from initial

recognilion of assats but

not recognised ag

deferred tax assets B07,035 1,330,400 - -

(110,823 {Bg.978) - -

Under/{Cver} provision in - -

prior years &,005 {12,818)

{104, 518) {82 587) - -

15. Loss per share
{a) Basic

Basic loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing totat comprehensive
loss for the financial year, net of tax, attributable to owners of the Cempany
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the
financial year.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - Ly
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
15. Loss per share (continued)

{a) Basic {continued)

Group
2018 2017
RM RM
Loss net of tax attriputable to owners
of the Company (4,287,148} {7.468,926)
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue 73,335,400 73,473,482
2018 2017
Sen San
Basic loss per shara {(5.85) (10.18)

(b)  Diluted

There is no dilution in the earnings psr share of the current and previous year

end as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding at the end
of the reporting pericd.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

18.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Company
Furnitura,
fittings and
Renovation  equipment Total

Costs RM RM RM
At 1 January 2017/31 December

2017731 December 2018 104,907 20,844 125,851
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2017 04,415 20,944 115,359
Charge for the financial year 10,491 - 10,491
At 31 December 2017/31 December

2018 104,908 20,944 125,850
Net book value
At 31 Dacember 2017/31 December

2018 1 - i

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment during the financial year was taken
up in the financial statements as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2014 2017
RM RM RM RM
Recognised in profit or
losa {Mote 12)
- Cest of sales 2842115 3,047,718 - -
- Administrative expanses 942 658 822387 - 10,481
- Belling expanzes 33,438 34,288 - -
3518111 3,904,365 - 10481

Freehold land, leasehold land and building of the Group with net book value
amounting to RM8,803,861 (2017 RM8,796,180) are pledged for banks for banking
taclliies granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 26 to tha financial statements.

PJaPt“an:i equipment of the Group acquired under hire purchase arrangements are
as follows:

Accumulated Net book
Cost depreclation valye
2018 R RM RM
Motor vehicles 042 484 (283,499} 659,015
2017
Motor vehicles 1,494 803 {488,708} 1,008,095
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445831 - L)}
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

17.

18.

Land use rights

Group

2018 2017
Cost RM RM
At 1 January!31 Dacember 1,337,376 1,337 376
Accumulated amortlsation
At 1 Januargrq 407,788 444 558
Charge for the financial year (Note 12) 53,230 53,230
At 31 Decembar 851,018 497 788
Net book value
At 31 December 786,358 839,588

The land use rights are not transferable and wili expire on 31 December 2033.

Investments in subsidiary companies

Company
2018 217
RM RM
Cost
Unquoted shares, at cost 82,152,988 92,152,988
Accumulated impairment [osses {13,086,051) {13,085,051)
Net carrying amount 79,068,937 79,066,637

All of the subsidiaries held by the Company are incorporaied in Malaysia, details are
as follows:

Principal Proportion of

Name of place of ownership
subsidiaries Principal actlvities bualness intarast
2018 2017
Yo %
Cyman Plywood Manufacturing and sale of veneer, Sandakan 100 100
Sdn. Bhd. piywood and decorative plywood and
and provision of barge hiring Jengka
senicas
Inovwood Manufacturing and sale of venger, Sandakan 100} 100
Sdn. Bhd. piywood and desorative plywood
Svabas Mujur Sales and extraction of log limber  Sandekan 100 100
Sdn. Bhd. operations. Operations temporarily
caasad.
Poly-Ply Industrles  Manufacturing and sals of polyester- Kiang 100 100
Sdn. Bhd. overlaid plywood and veneer.
Billion Apex Sdn. Dormant Sandakan 100 100
Bhd.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - 1)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

19.  Investments accounted for using the equity method

Group
2018 2017
RM RM
Cost
Unquoted shares, at cost - 640,000
Share of pest-acquisition fogs - 588,828
Net carrying amount - 51,172
Principal Proportion of
Name of joint place of ownership
venturs Princlpal activities business Interest
2018 2017
% %
GP Dynarmic Manufacturing of venser, plywood Kuala - 40
Venture Sdn.  and sawn timber Tarengganu
Bhd. .

Disposal of joint venture

0On 31 October 2018, the Group disposed off its entire equity interests in GP Dynamic
Venture Sdn. Bhd. for a {otal cash consideration of RM28,197. The disposals had

the following effects on the financial position of the Group as at the end of the
financial yaar:

2018

RM
Carrying value of joint venture 40,027
Loss on disposal to the Group {Note B) (10,830}
Consideration received, satisfied in cash 29,197

The summarisad financial information below repressents amounts shown in the joint
venture's financial statements.

GP Dynamic Vanture

Sdn. Bhd.
2018 2017
R RM
Current assets - 1,248 279
Mon-current assets - -
Current liabilities - {1,175,287)

Mon-current liabllitias
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - L)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

18. Investments accounted for using the equity method (continued)
Disposal of Joint venture {continued)

GP Dynamiec Venture

Sdn. Bhd.
2018 2017
RM RM
Ttie following amounts have been included in the
amounts above
Cash and cash eguivalents - 1,578
{urrent financlat liabilities - (75,329)
Non-current financial liabilities - -
Revenue - -
Loss for the financial year - (1,022,313)
Cther comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - {1022,313)
The following amounts have been included in the
amounts ahove
Depreciation - (28,372)
Interest income - 348
Interest expense - (5,574)
Income tax expense - {2.845)

Dividend received from the joint venture during the
financial yaar - -

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the
interest in the joint venture recognised in the Group's financial statements.

GP Dynamic Venture

Sdn. Bhd.
2018 2017
RM RM
Net assets of the joint venture - 12,002
Proporticn of the Group's ownership interest
in the joint venture - 40%
Garrying amount of the Group’s intarast in the
joint vantura - 51,172
2018 2017
Commitments RM RM
Capital expenditure as at the reporting date is
as follows:
Properiy, plant and equipmant;
Appraved but not contracted for - 3,467 997

Thatre were no contingant liabilities related to the Group's investment in the joint
venture.
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. Ne. 445831 - 1))
{incorporated in Malays/a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

20. Inventories

2018 217
Cost RM RM
Raw materials 8,209 727 7,028,329
Work-in-progress 4,418,211 3,807,018
Finished goads 9,788,383 1,222,382
Materials and supplies 2,389,801 2,650,951
Goods-in-transit 1,245,930 568,649
' 26,150,852 15,278,309

Net realisable value
Raw materials - 249,951
Work-in-progress 3,497,711 3,400,547
Finished goods - 2,788,902

29,848,583 21,717,719
Less: Allowance for slow moving inventories {170,854) (59,344)

29,477,709 21,658,375

The write-down of inventaries to net realisable value recognised as an expensa during
the financial year amaunted to RM535,046 (2017: RM1,520,421).

Inciuded in work-in-progress are the following expenses incurred and capitalised
during the financial year:

2018 2017
M RM
Employae benefits axpense 1,032,966 258 062
Rental 80,826 5,298
21. Trade and non-frade recelvables
Group Company
2018 2047 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM
Trade raceivables
Thirg parties &.008, 340 11,548,044 - -
Less: Allowancs for impalrmept - {42 583) - -
Trade receivables, net 2,089 340 11,504,275 - -
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CYMAQ HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - L)
{Incorparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

21. Trade and non-trade receivables (continued)

Group Company
2048 2017 28 2017
RM RM RM R

Won-trade receivablga
Deposils for log supplies 400,000 842,460 - -
Prapaymants 2,776,128 911,504 5,021 4711
Btaff advances 47 Y] - -
Sundry Jdeposits 1,305,727 1,312,302 - -
Sundry racalvables 1,820,682 1,157,283 - -

6.311,581 4,024 257 B.221 4711
Leza: Allowance for impalrment - {83,928} - -
MNon-trads receivables, nst 6,211,581 3,830 331 5521 4,711
Amount due from gubsidinriea - - 10,320,381 10,670,291
Lass: Allowance for Impairment - - (10473719 (B 805 895)

_ - 146,872 1,804,496

Total trade and non-trade
recelvahlas 15,410,931 15,434 706 152 553 1,808,207

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and non-trade in nature. These
balances are interest free and repayable on demand.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the normal credit terms granted by
the Group are 30 to 60 days (2017: 30 to 60 days). Cther credit terms are assassed
and approved on a case-by-case basis.

Deposits for log supplies

Deposits for log supplies represent advances paid to log suppliers for logs to be
purchasad.

During the financlal year, the following {gains)flosses were recognisad in profit or loss
in relation to impaired financial assets:

Group

Recelvables

RM

At 1 January 2017 227 456
Charge for the financial year {Note 9) 83,828
Reversal during the financial year (Note 9) (184,987)
At 31 Decamber 2017 136,495
Charge for the financial year {Note 9} 175,069
Reversal during the financial year {Nota 9) (311,584)

At 31 Decembear 2018 _
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CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445931 - L))
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

21.  Trade and non-trade receivables (continued)
Company
Amount due
from
subsidiary
company
RM
At 1 January 2017/31 Decamber 2017 -
Effect of adoption of MFRS & 8,865,805
At restated 8,865,895
Charge for the financial year (Note 9) 1,307,824
At 31 December 2018 10,173,719
Trade and other receivables that are individually datermined to be impaired at the
reporting date relate to debtors that are in significant financial difficulties and have
defaults on payments. These raceivables are not secured by any collateral or credit
enhancemeants.
Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and impairment losses for
trade receivables is included in Note 30 to the financial statements.
22, Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
2014 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RM RM
Cash in hand 85,021 41,661 - 58
Cash at tanks 1,064,395 3,084,620 24,858 30,247
Deposits wilh Acansed
hanks 2,147,041 1,431,986 - -
Caeh and bank halances 3,306 467 5458177 24 858 30,206
Bank overdraft {secured}
{Note 25) {(1,010,653) -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,295,804 5408177 24 838 30,205

Included in deposits with licensed bank is an amount of RM1,500,000 (2017:
RM800,000) of meney market placement, which are made up for varying perlods of
between a faw days depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company
and earn interests at the respective short-term deposit rates at 2.7% (2017 3.0%).
The remaining balance of RMB47,041 (2017: RMB31,985) placed as fixed deposits

with the interest rate of 2.95% (2017: 2.95%} per annum with tha maturity period of 1
(2017 1) month.

0



CYMAQO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 4455831 -1
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

23. Asset classified as held for sale

Group
2018 2017
RM RM
At 1 January - -
Transferred from property, plant and equipment
{Note 18) 2,760,630 -
At 31 December 2,760,830 -

At 31 Dacember 2018, the non-current asset held for sale relates to the contractual
commitment entered by a wholly-owned subsidiary of tha Cempany, namely, Cyman
Plywood Sdn. Bhd. on 4 June 2018, to diepose two (2} parcals of industrial land in

Sandakan, and which the said disposal is expected to be completed by and of
October 2018,

Please refer to Note 34 to the financlal statements on the detailed information on the
said disposal.

24.  Share capital, share premium and treasury shares

GroupiCompany
Bhare Treasury
Shara capital premium shares

lasued and fully pald unlt RM RM RM
At 1 January 217 75,000,000 75,000,000 1 374,387 B30,902)
Share buy-back - - - (53,042
Tranaltien fo no par valua

regime under Companies )

Act 2016 - 17,374,287 (17,374,387 -
At 31 December 2017/

31 Dacember 2018 75,000,000 92,374,387 - {593,951}

The Company’s issued and fully paid-up share capital comprises ordinary shares with
a8 par value of RM1 each. The new Companies Act, 2016 {“CA 2018"), which came
intc aporation on 31 January 2017, intreduces tha "no par value” regime. Accerdingly,
the concepts of "authorised share capital” and “par valug” have bean abalished.
Therefore, the share premium account now effectively forms part of the Company's
share capital effective 31 January 2017 and at the end of the financial year.

{a) Share capltal

The holders of ordinary shares {(except treasury shares) are entitied to receive
dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry
one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.
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24. Share capital, share premium and treasury shares (continued)

(k)

Treasury shares

Treasury shares relate to ordinary shares of the Cnmpany that are held by the
Company. The amount consists of ths acquisition cost of treasury shares net
of the proceeds received on their subsequent sale or issuance.

The rapurchase transactions wera financed by intemally generated funds. The
shares repurchased ara being held as treasury shares,

Of the total 75,000,000 Issuad and fully paid ordinary shares as at 31
Becernber 2018, 1,664,800 (2017: 1,664,600) are held as treasury shares by
the Company. As at 31 Dacember 2018, the humber of outstandin ordinary

shares in issue after the setoff is therefore 73,335,400 (2017 73,335,400)
ordinary shares of Rifi1 each.

25, Accumulated losses

The Gompany's policy Is to treat all gains and losses that pass through the statement
of comprehensive income {i.e. non-owner transactions or events) as revenue
reserves, Other than retained profits, all other revenue reserves are regarded as non-
distributable in the form of cash dividends to sharehaldsrs, Accumulated losses is the
opposite of retained profits and when an entity is in an accumulated loss position, it
is prohibited from distributing cash dividends io shareholders.

26. Loaus and borrowings

Group
2018 2017

Mon-currsnt R RM
Obltgations under fingnce lbases 430,650 378,840
Tarm loans 1,487,498 1,641,118

1,018,148 2,019,958
Current
Bank overdrafi {Note 223 1,010,653 -
Bankars ‘acceptance 8,211,000 5,975,000
Qbligations under finance leases 151,816 98,209
Term loans 154,680 147,612

8,528,149 6,220,621
Total loans and borrowings
Bank overdraft 1,010,663 -
Bankers' acceptance 8,211,000 5,975,000
Obligations under finance leases 582,466 477,040
Term loans 1,642,178 1,788,730

11,446,297 8,240,779
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26,

Loans and borrowings (continued)

Group

2018 2017

RM R
Maturify s¢ructure of loans and borrowings
Within ona year 0,528,149 6,220,821
Between ona to two years 324,782 280,437
Between two to five years 815,268 784,348
Mere than five years 178,097 885,173

11,448,297 8,240,779

The interaut rate structuras are as follows:

Mominal Interest rate

Effectlve Intargak rate

2018 ridkg 2018 2007
Bank owverdraft BLR +
0.8% -1.0% - F41% - 7.81% -

Bankers'

acceptance 4.02% - 4.08% 3.45% - 3.83% 4,029 - 4.02% 345% - 3.83%4
Obligations

under

finance leases 2.58% - 3.63% 2.56% - 3.63% 4 B4% - B.78% 4.84% - 5.78%
Tarm loanz BLR - 1.5% BLR - 1.5% £.40% §.35%
(=) Bank overdraft

(o}

Bank overdrafts are denominated in RM and bear effective interest ranging
7.41% to 7.91% (2017: Nil%) par annum.

Thesa loans and borrowings are secured by!

(i} alagal charqe over freshold land and building as disctosed in Note 16
to tha financlal stataments;

(i) a joint and several guarantess sxecuied by two directors of the
Company; and

{ii} acorporate guarantes issued by the Company.

Bankers' acceptance

These are used to finance purchases of the Company denominated in R
and are ghort tarm in nature.

These loans and borowings are secured by:

i} a legal charge over freehold land, leasehold land and building

belonging to the subsidiary companies as disclosed in Note 16 to the
financial statements;

() a joint and several guarantess executed by tweo directors of the
Company, andg

{ii} =2 corporate guarantes issued by the Company.
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26. Loans and borrowings (continued)

{c)

(d)

Ohllgations under finance leases

Future minimum payments under hire purchase pa

present value of the net minimum payments are a9 Fo'lluws:

Minimum hire purchase paymants.

Repayabls within one year
Repayahle between one to two years
Repayabla between two to five years

Total future minimum hire purchase
payments
Less, Future finance charges

Present value of hire purchase liabiliiies

Present vaiue of hire purchase liabilities:

Fapayable within one year
Repayable behvesn ona to iwo years
Repayable between twe to five years

Representing:

Gurrent
Mon-current

ables tagether with the

Group
2018 2017

RN RN
182,040 124118
182,040 124116
282 367 287,722
846,447 545,854
{63,981) {68,905)
582 466 477,049
151,816 98,208
181,523 104,732
289127 274108
562,466 477,049
151,818 £8,209
430,650 378,840
582,486 477,049

The hire purchase payables bear effective interest ranging from 4.84% to
6.78% (2017, 4.84% to 8.78%) per annum and shall be repaid in full by 2023,

Term loans

The remaining maturities of the term loans are as follows:

On demand or within cna year
Betwean ona to two years
Betwsen two io five years
More than five years

Group
2018 2017

RM RN

154,680 147,612

163,256 155705

548,142 520,240

778,087 865,173
1,642,178 1,788,730

The loans are repayable ovar 180 and 120 monthiy instalments ending in
the year 2028, and bears effective interest at 5.41% (2017, 533%) per

annum.

T4




CYMAD HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - L)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
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27. Deferred tax liabilities

Group
2018 2017
RM RM
At1 Janua&y 1,637,581 1,107,259
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 14) (113,118) {69,097 8)
At 31 Decamber 1,524,463 1,637 581

The companents and movemsnts of deferred tax liabilities of the Group during tha
financial year are as follows:

Property,
plant and
equipment
R
At 1 January 2017 1,707,569
Recognised in profit or Inss (Note 14) (89,978)
At 31 Decembar 2017 1,637,581
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 14) {113,118}
At 31 December 2018 1,524,463

The Group and the Compan méasure a deferrad tax liability/(assat) using the tax

Eatfs and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively snacted by the reporting
ate.

In detarmining the rate to be applied for deferred tax measurement, the Company
applies the average rate applicsble to the Company, determined by dividing the

current tax charge over the chargeable incoms, or if the Company has no chargeable
incoms, at the lower rate,

The amount of temporary differances of the Group for which no deferred tax asset
has been recagnised in the statemenis of financial position is as follows:

2018 2017
RAt RVl
Capital allowance in excess of depreciation 1,565,917 1,341,736
Unutilised tax lossas 26,356,034 25,7131 886
Unabsorbed capital allowances ;39,994,41&% 47 3381 Qﬁi
Unutilized reinvestmant aliowancs 15,883,373 15,683,373
{80,477,808} {87.393,718)
Deferred fax assats at 24% (2017; 23%) not
raecognised in the financial statements (18,314,657) (20,100,555)

The unsbscrbed capitai allowances and unabscroed reinvesiment allowances
disclosad ahove are avajlable indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
whoreas the unutilised losses is availabla to be carried forward up to the maximurm of
seven (7) years, subject to no substantial change in shareheldings undsr the Income
Tax Act, 1967 and guidelines issued by the tax authority.

These deferred tax assets are not recognisad dus to uncertainty of its recoverability.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

28. Trade and non-trade payables

Graup Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

Trade payables RM RM RM RIvi
Third parties 6078322 4 502,084 - -
Won-trade payahles .
Other payables

Third partles 2,234,769 1,307,443 7.250 19,481
Accruals 1,048,651 1,208,947 151,000 167,000
Deposits recaived from

customers 1,003 600 8,100 - -

4,287,020 2,522,490 158,280 123G 481

Amount due to subsidiarlzs - - 11,811,307 11,663,488
Amaunt due to & Director 1,460,128 36,131 - 12,000
Total trade and non-

trade payables 11,825 47 7 080,708 11,969,657 11,851,089

Trade payatles are non-interast bearing and the normal credit terms granted to the
Group are 30 to 60 days (2017: 30 to 60 days).

Cther payables are non-intarest bearing and nomally settled on an average term of
six (B) months.

Included in the deposits is an amount of RMB44,000 (2017: RMNile, relaiing to the

disposal of two (2) parcals of industrial land to a third parly, as disclosed in Note 23
to the financia! statements.

Amounts due to Director and subsidiary companies are unsecured and non-trade in
nature. Thess balances are interest free and repayable on demand.

29. Significant related party transactions
fa} ldentltles of relaied parties

Parties are considered to be related o the Group and the Gompany if the
Group and the Company have the ability, directly or indirectly, to caontrol the
party or sxercise significant influence over the pary in making financial and
oporating decisions, or vice versa, or wiere the Group or the Company and
the party are subject to common contrel or common significant influence.
Related parties could be individuals or cther antities.

The Group and the Company have related pary relationships with its

Directors, key management personne!, a person connected to a Director of
the Company.
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29, Signiflcant related party transactions {confinued)

{b} The aggre%ale vaiue of transactions and outstanding balances of the related
parties of the Group and of the Company were as follows;

Balance cutstanding as

Graup Transaction valug at 31 Dacember
Typo af 2018 2017 2018 2017
Nams of related party  transaction RM RM RM RA
With perzer connactad
lo & Dlrector of the
Company.
Lia, ¥u-Lin Salariaz FH,000 86,000 - -
YWith CHractor of tha
Comipany:
Syad Ibrehim Bin Syed Legel and
Abr. Rahman professianal fess - 0,000 - -
Balance outstanding as
Company Tranaaction valus at 31 Dacember
Typa ol 2018 2017 2014 7
Nama of rélated party  tranaaction RK RN R RM
With subsldian
companies:

Cymao Pilywoad Sdn.
Bhd. Advancas (157.808) {251.861)  {11,783,307) (11,605 458)
Insvwood Sdn. Bhd. Payment af

account 3E0,000 340,000 10,320,381 10,670,301
impaiment on
financlal asaet 1,307,824

Poly-Ply Induslries Sdn.
Bhd.

- - - {48,000) (48, 000)
1With Diractar of the

Company;
Lin, Kai-Min {12,000

fc) The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during
the financial year was as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 a7
RM i R R
Shari-term employze benefits 1,224000 1,282,800 168,000 204,000

Key mahagement personnal are defined as those persons having authority
and responsibliity for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Group and ¢f the Company either directly or indirectly. The key managament
psrscnnel comprise all the directors of the Group and of the Company and
membsrs of senior management of the Group.

The terms and conditions and prices of the above transacticns are mutually agresd
hetweaen the partiss,

T7




CYMAD HOLDINGS BERHAD
{Co. No. 445831 - U)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)
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30. Financial insfruments

a}

Categories of flnancial instruments

Group
2018
Financial assets

Financial assets not measurad at
fair value

Trade and non-trada receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilitles

Financial liahilities not measurad
at fair value
Leans and borrowings
Trade and non-trade payables

2017
Financial asseis

Financial assets not measured at
fair valus
Trade and non-trade receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilltles

Financial lakilities not measurad
at fair valua
Loans and borrowings
Trade and non-trade payables

Financizal
assetlsy
Carrying meaasured at
amount amortised cost
RM RM
15,410,931 10,929,076
3,308,457 3,308,457
18,717,388 14,235 533
Flnancial
{liabilifles
Carrying maasurad at
amount amoriized cost
RM RM
11,446,287 11,446,297
11,825,470 11,825 470
23,271,767 23,271,767
Garrying Loans and
amount recaivables
RM R
15,434,706 12,568 341
6 458 177 5,458 177
20,892 883 18,026,518
Financial
liabllities
Carrying measured at
amount amortised cost
RM BM
8,240,779 B.240,779
7,060,705 7,080,705
15,301,484 15,301,484
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30. Flnancial instruments (coniinued)

(a}

Categories of financial Instrumsnts (continued}

Company
2018
Financial asaais

Financial asssts net measured at
fair value

Trada and non-trade receivables
Cash and hank balances

FInancial ligbility

Financlal liabilities not measured
at fair value
Trade and non-trade payables

2017
Financlal assets

Financial assets not measurad at
fair value
Trade and nen-trade receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liability

Financial liabilities not measured
at falr value
Trade and non-trade payablas

Flnancial
gesels
Carrylng measurac at
amount amortised cost
RM RM
152,583 146,872
24,858 24 858
177,451 171,520
Financlal
liabllitias
Carrylng measured at
amount amortised cost
RN RM
141,989,557 11,968 567
Carrying Loans and
amount recaivables
RM RM
10,675,102 10,670,391
30,306 36,305
10,705,407 10,700,608
Financial
llahilitles
Garrying measured at
amount amortized cost
RWi R
11,851,982 11,851 989
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30. Financlal instruments (continued)

{a) Categories of financlal Instruments (continued)

A reconciliation of trade and other receivables financial assats to the amounts
reflected in the Statements of Financial Position Is as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
RM RM RV RM

Trade and other receivables
As reflected in the Statements

of Financial Pozition 15,410,931 15,434,708 152,583 10,675,102
Less: Prapayments (Note 21) (2,776,128} {911,504) {6,921) {(4711)
Less: Sundry deposits

{Mote 21) (1,305,727} (1,312.302) - -
Less: Deposits for log supplies

(Note 21) (400000}  {B42,468) - -
Loans and recaeivables 102200768 12,568,341 1468672 10,670,391

fi) Wet (gain}flosses arising from financial instruments

Group Company
2018 2047 2018 2017
R RM RN RAf
Net (gain)/losses arising from:
Laans and recelvables
- 3aIn on foreign exchange
- Realised (485 450} {21,180} - -
- Unresalised - {104,843} - -
- Lass on forsign exchange
- Realized 4,384 143,968 - -
- Unrealizad - 1,473 - -
- Impsairment on financlal
assats {136,485) {90,981) 1,307 824 -
- interzat incomea (30,448} {31,117 - -
- Bad dabts written off 304,565 184 887 - -
{263,434) 72,117 1,307,824
Financial liabtities at amortised
cost
- Interest sxpense 424 282 330,983 - -
- Liablitles no longer in
existence written back {8,078} - - -

181,748 403,080 1,307,824 -

{c) Flnancial risk management

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their
operations and the uss of financial instruments. The key financial rigks include
credif risk, liquidity risk, Interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

()

Firanclal risk management (continued)

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and proceduras for the
management of these risks, which are executed by tha Group's finance
depariment oversesn by an Exacutiva Director. The audit committee provides
independant oversight to the effactiveness of the risk management process.

it i5, and has bean throughout the cument and previous financial year, the
Group's policy that no derivatives shall be undertaken except for the use as

hedging instruments whers appropriate and cost-efficient. The Group does
not apply hedge accounting.

The following sections provide detsils ragarding the Group's and the
Company’s exposure fo the above-mentioned financial risks and the
objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

)] Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial
instrumants should a counterparty default on its obligations. The
Group's exposure {o credit risk arises primarily from trade recalvablgs.
For other financlal assets (including cash and bank balances), thae
Group and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively
with high credit rating counterpartios.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenus growth while
minimiging losses incurred dus to increasad cradit risk exposure, The
Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an cngeing basis.

It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the
resuli that the Group's exposurs to bad debis [s not significant. For
transaciions that de not oceur in the country of the relevant operatin

unit, the Group does not offar credit tarme without the approval o
ianaging Director.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the
reporting date is as follows:

Gross indlvidual Carrying
amount impairment valye
2018 RM RM RM
Mot past due 8,056,970 - 5,068 970
FPast due:
- ie=s than 80 days 2,328,128 - 2328128
- between 61 to 120 days 681,672 - 581,572
- between 121 to 365 days 19,588 - 19,5686
- more than 385 days 112,084 - 112584
3,042,370 - 3,042 370
0,088 340 - 9,089 340

21




CYMAO HOLDINGS BERHAD
(Co. No. 445931 - U)

{Incorperated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018
30.  Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Financial risk management {(continued)
{i} Credit risk (continued)

Gross Individual  Carrying

amount Impalmant value

2017 RM R RM

Not past dus 6,580,353 - 8,580,383
Past due:

~ less than 80 days 3967 377 - 3,887,377
- betwasn 81 to 120 days 350,555 - 350,555
- between 121 to 365 days 656,184 - 656,184
- more than 385 days (7,535} {42,56%) (50,104)

4,966,581 (42,589 4,224,012
11,546,944 (42,580) 11,804,375

As at the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company's maximum
exposure to credit risk is represantad by:

- the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recegnisad

' in the Statements of Financial Position; and

- & nominal amount of RM10,000,000 (2017: RM10,000,000)
relating to a corporate guarantes provided by the Company to a
bank for credit facilities granted to its subsidiaries.

Trade recelvables that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade recelvables that are nsither past due nor impairad are
creditworthy receivables with good payment records with tha Group.
Tha palances from thess trads receivables are unsecured in nature.
None of the Group's trade recelvables that are neither past due nor
impaired have been renegotiated during the financial year. The
Directors have reviewsad the recoverability of the recelvables and are
of the apinion that no provigion is required in respect ofthese debts.

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired

The Group beliaves that no impairment allowance is necessary is
respect of these trade receivables. They are substantially companies
with good collection track record and no recent history of defauit,

Cradlt risk concentration proflle

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainiy by the
individual characteristics of each customer. Outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major
customers are generally covered by letters of credit obtained from
banks and other financial institutions. The Group determines
concentration of cradit risk by monitoring the profile of its trade
recaivables on an ongolng basis.
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WNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

30. Financlal instruments (continued)

{c) Financial risk rmanagement (continued)

(1)

Credlt risk (continued}
Cradit risk concentration profile {(continued)

An impairment analysis ls performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit iosges. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of varicus customer
segments with similar loss patterns (.., by custemar type and rating
and coverage by letters of credit). The calculation refiects tha
probability-weighted cutcome, the time wvalue of money and
reasonable and suppertable informatiocn that is available at the
reporting date about past evenis, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables without
repayment are writian off if past due for maore than one {1} year and
are not subject to enforcement activity.

At 31 Dacember 2018, 4% (2017: 7%) of the Group's trade
raceivables are covered by letters of credit. None of these customers’
balances have been writtan off or are credit-impaired at tha reporting
date. In monitoring customer credlt risk, customers are grouped
according to their cradit characteristics, inciuding whether they are
an individual or a legal entity, trading history with the Group and
existence of previous financial difficulties.

A summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk for irade
receivables is as follows:

Group
2018 2017
R RN
With letter of cradit 408,287 813,000
Without lettar of credit 8,681,053 10,733,846
Net careying amount 9,000,340 11,546,944
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30.  Financfal instruments {continued)

{c) Financial risk management {continued)

(i)

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will
sncounter difficulty in meeting financial cbligations due to shortage of
funds. The Group’s and the Company's exposure io liquidlty risk
arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets
and liabilities. The Group's and the Company's objactive is to
maintain a balancs between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of stand-by credit facllities.

As part of its overall liquidily management, the Group maintains
sufficient lavels of cash or cash convertible investmenta to maet its
working capital reguiraments. in addition, the Group strives to
maintain available banking facilities at a reasonabls leve! to its overall
debt position. As far as possible, the Group raises committed funding
from financial institutions and balances Its portfolic with some short-
term funding 8o as to achleve overail cost sffectiveness.

The following table sets out the maturity profile of the Group's and the
Company's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
the rates at the end of the reporting period):

Group Contractusl
Carrying  undizscounted Within 1-5 Over
amount cash flows 1 year YBATE i years
2018 it RM RM a]m RN
Loans and

barrowings 11,448,297 11,881 511 DE42 417 1,423,303 704 801
Trade ang

non-trade )
payabiles 11,825 470 11,828 470 11,825,470 - -
23,271,787 23 6A7.081 21,468 887 1,423,303 794 841

2017
Loans and

borrowlngs 8,240 779 8,705 560 0,338,840 1,380,734 985 oBG
Trads and

nan-trede

payables ¥.060,705 7380705 7.0BD, 705

15,501,484 15,766,265 13,390,545 1,380,734 985,986
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30,

Flnancial [nstruments [mnti'nued}

()

Financial risk management {continued)

(il

(iii)

Liquldity risk {continued)

Company Contractual
Carmying  undizcountad Withir: t=5 Over
amount cagh flows 1 yaar years B years
amg RM R R AM R
Trade and
non-trade
payeblas 11,968,557 11 Q64 B57F 11,568,557 -

11,969,657 11,088 Ba7 11,969,557 - -

Gonlractual
Carrying  undiscounted Wihin 1-5& Cvar
ameunt cagh flows 1 yoar years G years
N7 RM AR RM R Am
Trada and
non-trads
payablaz 11,851,985 11,851,284 11,851,589

11,851,888 11,851, 589 11,861,250

At the reporting date, the counterparty to tha financial Juarantass
does not have a right to demand cash as the defau't has not cecurred.
Accordingly, financial guaraniess under the scope of MFRS 8

Financial nstruments are not included in the above maturity profife
analysis.

Intarast rate risk

Interest rate risk is the rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrumant will fuctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arisss maindy
from its loans and borrowinga. Al of the Group’s and the Company’s
loans and borrewings are at fioating rates and contraciually re-priced
at intervals of less than six (8) months from the reporting date.

The foliowing table details the sansitivity analysls to a reasonahly
possible chanFe In the interest ratas as at the end of the reporting

peried, with all other variablas held constant;
Group
Increase/{Decreasa)
2018 207
Effects on loss after taxation RM RM
Increase of 100b (2,154) (2,651)
Dacrease of 100bp 2,194 5,651

The above sensitivity analysiz is arising mainly as a result of its
ficating rate hank borrowings.
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30.

Financial instruments (continued)

(c)

Financlal risk management (continued)

(iv)

Forsign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows

of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in forelgn
exchange rate.

The Group has transactional cumrency exposure arising primarily
through sales that are denomingted in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The

currency giving rigs to this risk is primarily the United States Dollar
{USD).

Approximately 60% (2017: 46%) of the Group's sales are
denominated in foreign currencies whilst all the costs are
denominated in the functional currency of the Group antities. The
Group and the Company also hold cash and cash equivalents
denominated in foraign currencies for working capital purposes.

As at the reporting date, tha currency exposure of financial assets
and financial liabilities that are not denominated in their functional
currency are set ot balow:

Group
2018 2007
United Statea Dollar R RM
Financlal aseats
Cash and bank balances 261,175 1,231,580
Trade and non-trade
receivables 3,205 243 2,986,333
3,488 418 4,217,023
Financlal llability
Trade and non-trade
payables - -
MNet financial assets held
in non-functional
currencies 3,466,418 4,217 923

The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably
possible change in the foreign currencies as at the and of the
reporting period, with all other variables held constant:
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{c) Financial risk managemaent {continued)

(d)

{iv} Forelgn currency risk (continued)

Group Increasef{Decreass}
2018 2017

Effects on loss after RM R

taxatlon
USD/RIM
Strengthened by 2%

{2017: 10%) 100,636 640,560
Weakenad by 2%

{2017: 10%) {100,638) (649,560)

Falr value information

Fair value is defined as the amaunt at which ths financial instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between knowledgeable wiling parties
in an arm’s length transaction, other than in a force sale or liquidation,

The Group and the Company use the following fair value higrarchy for

determining and disclosing the fair valua of financial instruments by valuation
tachnigue:

Level 1.  quoted {unadjusted) prices in active market for identical assets or
liabilities

Leval 2. cther techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect
on the recorded fair valus are observable, either directly or
indlractly

Levei 3:  techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the
recordaed fair valus that are not based on observable market data

The financial assets and financial liabilities maturing within the next twelve
(12) months approximated their fair values due to the relatively shortterm
maturity of the financial instruments.

The fair values of obligations under finance leases and fixed rate term loan
ara determinad by discounting the relevant cash flows using current interest
rates for similar instruments as at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of the variable rate term loan approximated its fairvalue
as the instrument bears intarest at varlable rates.

The fair value of financial guarantees Is determined bassd on probability
weightsd discountad cagh flow method. The probability has been estmated
and assigned using the following key assumptions:
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30.

31.

32.

Financial instruments (continued)
{d) Fair value information {continuad)

- The likelihood of the guaranteed parly defaulting within the
guarantead pericd;

- The exposure on the portion that is not expectad to be recovered dus
ta the guaranteed party's default; and

- The estimated loss exposurs if the party guaranteed were to default.

Fair value ia defined as the amount at which the financial instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between knowledgeable wlling pariies
in an army’s length fransaction, other than in a force sate or liquidation.

Comparative figures

Amendmants made by MFRS 9 to MFRS 101 introduced additionat line items that
are requirsd to be presented in the statement of profit or loss. Consaquently, the

Group has disaggregated the reversal of impairment from othsr operating income,
as follows:

Ay As previousiy
: restated statad
Statement of profit or loss and other RAA R
compranensive income
Qther operating income 532 818 717,402
Impairment on financial assets 184 887 -

Capital managemeni

The primary objective of the Group’s capital manzgement is to ensure that it maintains
a sfrong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholdsr value. To achieve this objective, the Group may maks
adjustments to the capital structura in view of changes in economic conditions, such
as adjusting the amount of dividend payment, returning of capita! to shareholders or

Issuing new shares. Tha Group’s strategies were unchanged from the previous
financial year.

The gearing ratio of the Greup and of the Company as at the end of the reporting
period was as foliows:

Group Company

201 2017 2ma 2hi7

RM RM RM R
Loanz and borrowings 11 446,287 8,240,770
Less: Cash and bank

balances (3,308,457} (5,458,171 {24,858) (30,205)

et debt 8,139,840 2.782.602 {24 569} {(30,305)
Total equily 58,265,300 82,553,538 67,274,832 60,054 481
Gearing ratlo 0.14 .04
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32.

33,

34,

Capltat management (continued)

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by fotal equlity. Net debit is
calculated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Under the requirements of Bursa Malaysia Practice Note 17, the Group is required
to maintain a consclidated shareholders’ squity equal to or not lass than the 25% of
the issued and paid up capital (excluding freasury shares). The Group has complied
with this requirement.

The Group is not subject to any other externally imposed capital requirements.

Segment information
(i) Operating segment

The Group is principally involved in manufacturing and sale of plywood
praducts, which are principally carried out in Malaysia and thersfore only has
one reporiable segment. Accordingly, information by oparating segmants on
the Group's operations as raquired by MFRS 8 is not presented.

(i} Geographlcal information

The Group operates from Malaysia and therefore all revenues and assets

are derived/ located in Malaysia. Revenues by geographical location of the
customears are as follows:

(i)

2018 2097
RM RM
Malaysia 35,648,814 49,741,180
Asia 3,120,819 7,686,276
Eurcpe 1,237,833 964,514
United States of America 36,539,133 19,473,710
South-West Pacific 7,314,441 8,970,814
Others 4,172,848 5,260,851
88,033,888 93,089 145

Major customers

Revenus from 4 {2017: 4) major customers, which contributed five percant
{5%) or more of the revenue generated, amounted o RM24,838,502 (2017:
RM20,210,088) arising from manufacturing and sale of veneer, plywood,
decorative plywood and polyester-overlaid plywood.

Significant event

On 4 June 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, namely, Cymao
Plywood Sdn. Bhd. ("CPSB") has entered Into a sale and purchase agreement with
g third party for the disposal of two (2) parcels of industrial land held in Sandakan
for a total cash consideration of RM12,000,000.
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34.

35,

Slgnificant event (continued)

The deposit sum of 10% of cash consideration has been received from the
purchaser and the balance of RM10,800,000 shall ba paid by the purchasar within
five (3) months from the date of agreement (‘the Date of Compietion”). In the event
of the purchaser fails to pay the balance at the Date of Completion, CPSB shall
grant the purchaser an extension of time for a period of five months (“the Extendad
Completion Date"}. In considsration theraof, the purchaser shall pay to CPSB an

interest at 6% per annum an the unpaid balance en daily basis until the date of full
payment.

The disposal of land is subject to the fulfillment of the condition precedents as stated
in the sale and purchasa agraement, as follows:

{i) Ugon CPSB procuring the necessary approval for the transfer and for an
axtension of time to fulfill the cavenant of second parcel of tand within three
(3) months frem the date of sale and purchase agreement or such other
extended paricd that the parties may mutually agree in writing provided that
if the agreed period ig extandad, the completion date shali be extended
accerdingly for the same period without payment of interest.

(i} In the event that CPSB is unable to procure the approval for the transfer and
for extension of time as mentionsd in {i), the purchaser shali entitie to
terminate the sale and purchase agreement and CPSB shall refund fo the

purchaser all monies received pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement,
frae of interest.

(it} CPSB shall be responsible for payment of all premium, processing fee in

respect of the fulfillment on the condltion pracedent to the sacond parcel of
lang.

The said disposal is estimated to generate a gain approximately RM9 milfion to the
Company and will be recognised profit or loss in the financial year ending 31
December 2012 upen all condition pracedents heing fulfilled. The proceeds from the
disposal of land wili be channeled for the working capita! requirements of the Group.

Event after the reporting dats

Subssquent to the financial year, the Board of Directors has decided to cease the
operation in Jengka, Pahang, which was operated undet Cymao Plywood Sdn. Bhd,
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Revenus

Less: Impalrment on financial assei

Impalrment loss on amount due from subsidiary

Less: Administrative expenses

Advertisement expenses
Auditors’ remuneration

- statutory audit

- other services

Bank charges

Computer charges

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Directors’ remuneration

Cirector training

Entertainment

Express delivery

Goods and service tax expenses
Insurance

Printing and stationery
Professional fee

Repair and malntenances
Sundry expenses

Telaphcne and postages
Transportation charges
Travalling expenses

Loge bafora taxation

2018
RM

1,307,824

(1,307,824)

42,000
40,000
o7
5,004

168,000
1,833
700
(2,201)
7,457
9,505
59,608
30,850

72,430

1,778
11,278
23,668

2017
RM)

5,336

42,000
48,000
82

10,491
204,000

+40

15,701
14,192
44,287
26,200
380
74,859
7,812
13,348
23,142

471,805

(1,778,6209)

33,280
{531,200)
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